l’b‘a"éa

L4 ‘-»

wer
NORTHWESTTERRITORIES
TOWN OF HAY RIVER June 9%, 2020
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 6:30pm
AGENDA
PUBLIC INPUT

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS, AWARDS, CEREMONIES & PRESENTATIONS

5. MINUTES
a. Regular Meeting of Council -May 26™, 2020 — page 2-10
b. Special Meeting of Council — June 2", 2020 — page 11-14

6. BUSINESS ARISING
a. Purchasing Property at a Tax Auction

7. ADMINISTRATIVE ENQUIRIES

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS
a. Public Works Monthly Report for May — page 15-20
b. Tourism and Economic Development Report for April — page 21-25
c. Tourism and Economic Development Report for May — page 26-29
d. Mayors Monthly Report for May— page 30-31

9. NEW BUSINESS

Letter of Support for Katlo Tech — page 32

CPI Contribution Agreement — page 33

IT Services Contract Extendsion — page 34-37
Emergency Services Report for May — page 38-40
Municipal Services Report for May — Page 41-42
Council Procedure Information Report — page 43-46

~0 Q0T

10. BYLAWS
a. Bylaw 2386 — Porritt Landing Bylaw — Third Reading — page 47-55
b. Bylaw 2420 — Council Procedure Bylaw — First and Second Reading — page 56-80

11. NOTICES OF MOTIONS
12. IN CAMERA
a. Matters under Consideration - pursuant to Cities, Towns & Villages Act, S.N.W.T.
2003 c. 22, Section 23. (3), (e)

13. ADJOURNMENT

Page 1 of 1



“

v-hr"

t'Lfe"’b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

W

The Regular Meeting of Council was held on Tuesday, May 26", 2020 at 6:30pm By Video
Conference Call

Present: Mayor Kandis Jameson, Deputy Mayor Bouchard, Councilors Duford, Anderson,
Chambers, Dohey, Groenewegen and Willows

Staff: SAO Judy Goucher, ASAO — Glenn Smith, Director of Recreation — Stephane Millette,
Director of Protective Services — Ross Potter, Director of Public Works — Mike Auge,
Director of Finance — Sam Mugford, Council Administrator — Stacey Barnes

1. CALL TO ORDER:
This Meeting was called to order at 6:30pm with Mayor Jameson presiding.

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
#20-116 MOVED BY CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest at the Regular Meeting of Council on Tuesday, May
26", 2020.

4, ANNOUNCMENTS, AWARDS & PRESENTATIONS
Clir Dohey — The Wally Schumann Show and Shine Cruise is taking place on Thursday
starting at 7pm from the Bob McMeekin Chamber Park.
Mayor Jameson — The Birthday Parade has reached it's 10" Friday, good job Hay River

5. DELEGATION
a. Katlo Tech Presentation — Lyle Fabian

6. MINUTES
a. Regular Meeting of Council — May 19", 2020

#20-117 MOVED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS
SECONDED BY: CLLR DUFORD
CARRIED

7. ADMINISTRATIVE ENQUIRIES

Director of Finance — Sam Mugford
e Board of Revision is on June 12"
o Working on the GNWT Grant in Lieu to improve cash flow
o Working on the draft financial statements to bring to a finance committee for review

DM Bouchard — When are property taxes due and is there going to be an early payment option?
SAO Goucher — The final mill rate will not be set till after the board of revision, likely sometime in
July.

Page 1 of 9



“

W

t'L;é"’b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NDR'HWEST TERRITORIES

/J

Director of Protective Services — Ross Potter
o Submitted a plan to protect NWT to start training again, included standard operating
guidelines and a risk assessment. Waiting to hear back
e Ambulance calls in May have been very busy
o Bylaw patrols are happening daily

Director of Recreation — Stephane Millette
e Recreation has been busy with the emerging wisely plan
Submitted a plan to the Chief Public Health Officer for an outdoor summer camp
We have hired 6 summer students
Porritt landing is opening on June 15t as per bylaw, it is full with a waiting list
Working with local and Territorial sport organizations to see if they will be using our
greenspaces and what their plan is
In talks with the beautification committee regarding level of service for the summer
Working out details for the beach attendants and an agreement with the GNWT
¢ We have had special request for rentals such as the ballpark for a drive-in movie and
greenspaces for yards in bloom

Director of Public Works — Mike Auge
e Under boil water advisory until lifted by the CPHO
Esso water line is completed
Roads are being graded as needed
Gravel and calcium are going down soon
Had a Caribou Crescent project meeting yesterday and went over last year’s
deficiencies with the same contractor
o Water License delayed due to covid, it has pushed timelines back

Clir Willows — Is there any issues with the water plant infrastructure or is it mother nature causing the
boil water advisory.

Auge — Mother nature pushes the water to the intake. The intake line is on the capital plan to be
inspected this year.

DM Bouchard — Who is in charge of the Courtorielle Street sidewalks?

Auge — That was out of the outstanding deficiencies talked about with the contractor.

Assistant Senior Administrative Officer — Glenn Smith
¢ Working on a South Slave “Staycation” plan
Working on different funding applications
Pavilion has some outstanding construction, electrical etc.. being completed
In contact with the Wharf operator contractor to talk about opening in covid conditions
Policy Committee meeting on Friday to talk about the Porritt Landing bylaw and
Council Procedure Bylaw
DM Bouchard — When is the Visitor Information Centre opening?
ASAQO Smith — Tied into phase 2 with reduced hours
Clir Duford — With the “Staycation” plan can we advertise Air BnB’s? and | want to commend the
great work on the trails.

Page 2 of 9



“

v-hr"

t'L;é"’b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NDR'HWEST TERRITORIES

/J

8. NEW BUSINESS

a. Hay River Tourism Marketing Plan

| RECOMMENDATION:

#20-118 MOVED BY: CLLR DOHEY
SECONDED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER approves the Town of Hay River 2020
Tourism Marketing Plan as recommended by the Tourism & Economic Development
Committee.
CARRIED
| BACKGROUND:

On April 27™, 2020 the Council of the Town of Hay River approved the adoption of the 2020 Hay
River Tourism Development Plan. The plan presents a tourism vision and a complementary set of
goals relevant to tourism development for the community of Hay River. Specific strategic initiatives
with expected outcomes are prioritized in the plan for implementation over a 3-year period. These
initiatives focus on development of tourism services and products including key community
infrastructure.

To support the strategies outlined in the 2020 Tourism Development Plan, the Town of Hay River
Administration through the support of the Tourism and Economic Development Committee, entered
into an engagement with Outcrop Communications to facilitate the production of a Town of Hay River
2020 Tourism Marketing Plan (2020 Tourism Marketing Plan). As part of the engagement,
consultation occurred with local tourism operators for insight on community tourism demographics
and thought marketing opportunities.

The 2020 Tourism Marketing Plan outlines and considers industry relevant economic, political and
technology trends, identifies relevant key target markets, and presents prioritized marketing
initiatives best thought to capitalize on the tourism opportunities available to Hay River. The
marketing initiatives are scheduled over a 3-year period and include proposed budgets estimated to
properly execute. Execution of the marketing plan will create awareness of the community’s
emerging tourism services and products and promote Hay River as a destination and regional hub
for the plan’s identified key target geographic markets.

The 2020 Tourism Marketing Plan has been partially amended through its development to consider
the potential impact of COVID-19 on Hay River’s tourism product. This includes the likelihood that
people will be looking to stay close to home and search open air getaways. Regional and domestic
travel interest can play into Hay River’s favour through its target domestic and rubber tire traffic
markets and abundance of natural outdoor tourism attractions. The Territory’s tourism industry has
experienced an extended period of growth especially through international travel. However, the
industry is currently in a crisis as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and much uncertainty lies
ahead for the future of global tourism.

Page 3 of 9



“

W

t'L;;e:”b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

W

The Tourism and Economic Development Committee has reviewed the draft 2020 Hay River
Tourism Development Plan and recommends that the Council of the Town of Hay River approve the
plan as presented. The Committee looks forward to providing support through its execution.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

- 2020 Hay River Tourism Development Plan
- 2019-23 Town of Hay River Strategic Plan

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

- $220,000 over 3-years ($70,000 Capital; $150,000 O&M)
o $70,000 Capital
o $150,000 O&M
- $175,000 of funding is tied to contribution funding programs of which $35,000 has been
secured in 2020 for the Highway and Wayfinding Signage initiatives
- $45,000 of funding will be through approved Tourism and Economic Development
Department operating budget.

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

- Do not approve plan — Administration uses existing plans to execute tourism marketing
activities

| ATTACHMENTS: |

- Town of Hay River 2020 Tourism Marketing Plan - DRAFT

Prepared by: Approved by:
Glenn Smith Judy Goucher
Assistant Senior Administrative Officer Senior Administrative Officer
May 21, 2020 May 21, 2020

b. Award of Fuel As and When Tender

| RECOMMENDATION:

#20-119 MOVED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD
SECONDED BY: CLLR GROENEWEGEN

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER award the Supply and Delivery of Various
Fuels As & When Tender to Bassett Petroleum for the estimated amount of $213,220.00 per
year.

Page 4 of 9



“

W

t'L;;e:”b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

CARRIED

| BACKGROUND:

Tender #02010 for the supply and delivery of various fuels to Town of Hay River facilities was
issued on April 27", 2020. The tender period closed at 3:00pm on May 15™, 2020 and received the
following submitted bids:

Bassett Petroleum - $213,220.00
Midnight Petroleum - $225,653.40

The tender is for a two-year period and the values are based on the March 1%, 2020 rack price for
various fuel.

Bassett Petroleum was the low submission for all three fuel types listed in the tender and as such it
is recommended that Council award the full contract to them.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

-Bylaw-1574/GEN/16 Town of Hay River Purchasing Policy

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: |

Tender results are within 2020 Consolidated O&M budget for this service and lower than the 2019
submissions although this is due to the current price of fuel being significantly lower than it was last
year.

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

N/A
| ATTACHMENTS:
N/A
Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Mike Auge Judy Goucher
Director of Public Works Senior Administrative Officer
Date: May 20, 2020 Date: May 21, 2020

Page 5 of 9



“

v-hr"

W

c. Award of Dust and De-lcing Materials Tender

t'Lfe"’b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

| RECOMMENDATION:

#20-120 MOVED BY: CLLR DOHEY
SECONDED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER award the Supply and Delivery of Dust
Palliative and De-icing Materials Tender to Rowe’s Construction in the amount of $94,022.00
per year.
CARRIED
| BACKGROUND:

Tender #02012 for the supply and delivery of dust palliative and de-icing materials to the Town of
Hay River was issued on April 27", 2020. The tender period closed at 3:00pm on May 15™, 2020
and received the following submitted bids:

Dust Palliative:
Rowe’s Construction - $80,982.00
Carter Industries Ltd. - $97,900.00

De-icing Materials:
Rowe’s Construction - $13,040.00
Bassett Petroleum - $14,649.20

This Tender is for a two-year period based on estimated quantities of materials required by the
Public Works department annually.

Rowe’s Construction was the low bid on both items in the tender and as such it is recommended that
Council award the full contract to them.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

-Bylaw-1574/GEN/16 Town of Hay River Purchasing Policy

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: |

Tender results are within 2020 Consolidated O&M budget for this service and are similar to the 2019
pricing for these materials.

Pricing for dust palliative and de-icing materials are based on a cost per tonne and administration will
continually monitor spending to ensure that the approved budget for these materials is not exceeded.

Page 6 of 9



“

W

t'd“ek REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

W

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

N/A
| ATTACHMENTS:
N/A
Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Mike Auge Judy Goucher
Director of Public Works Senior Administrative Officer
Date: May 20, 2020 Date: May 21, 2020

d. Award of Granular As and When Tender

| RECOMMENDATION:

#20-121 MOVED BY: CLLR DOHEY
SECONDED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER award the Supply and Delivery of
Granular Materials Tender to Rowe’s Construction in the amount of $147,000.00 per year.
CARRIED
| BACKGROUND:

Tender #02011 for the supply and delivery of granular materials to the Town of Hay River was
issued on April 27", 2020. The tender period closed at 3:00pm on May 15™, 2020 and received the
following submitted bids:

Rowe’s Construction - $147,000.00
Carter Industries Ltd. - $152,250.00
Darrell’s Welding Ltd. - $96,495.00 (for supply and delivery of 4” minus and Sand only)

This Tender is for a two-year period and based on estimated quantities of materials required by the
Public Works department annually.

The Tender submission from Darrell’s Welding Ltd. did not include a submission for the %" granular
material. The Rowe’s Construction and Carter Industries Ltd. submissions included all three types of
granular material.

Rowe’s Construction was the low submission for all three of the granular materials that were
included and as such it is recommended that Council award the full contract to them.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A

Page 7 of 9



“

W

t'd“ek REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

W

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS: |

-Bylaw-1574/GEN/16 Town of Hay River Purchasing Policy

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: |

Tender results are within 2020 Consolidated O&M budget for this service and are similar to the 2019
pricing for these materials.

Pricing for granular materials is based on a cost per tonne and administration will continually monitor
spending to ensure that the approved budget for these materials is not exceeded.

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

N/A
| ATTACHMENTS:
N/A
Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Mike Auge Judy Goucher
Director of Public Works Senior Administrative Officer
Date: May 20, 2020 Date: May 21, 2020

9. NOTICE OF MOTIONS
There we no notice of motions for the Regular Meeting of Council, Tuesday, May 26", 2020.

10. IN CAMERA

#20-122 MOVED BY: CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: CLLR DOHEY

That the Council of the Town of Hay River move to In Camera at 7:32pm.

CARRIED
#20-123 MOVED BY: CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: CLLR ANDERSON
That the Council of the Town of Hay River move out of In Camera At 8:25PM.
CARRIED

Page 8 of 9



11.

'L;é’b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 26, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

ADJOURNMENT

#20-124 MOVED BY: CLLR WILLOWS
That the Regular Meeting of Council be adjourned at 8:26pm.

CARRIED

Certified Correct as Recorded on the 26'" Day of May 2020

These minutes were accepted by motion #

Mayor

Senior Administrative Officer

Page 9 of 9



”ay/e'uei SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES June 2™, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

The Special Meeting of Council was held on Tuesday, June 2", 2020 at 6:30pm By Video
Conference Call

Present: Mayor Kandis Jameson, Deputy Mayor Bouchard, Councilors Duford, Anderson,
Chambers, Dohey, Groenewegen and Willows

Staff: SAO Judy Goucher, ASAO — Glenn Smith, Director of Recreation — Stephane Millette,
Director of Public Works — Mike Auge, Director of Finance — Sam Mugford, Council
Administrator — Stacey Barnes

1. CALL TO ORDER:
This Meeting was called to order at 7:30pm with Mayor Jameson presiding.

2, ADOPTION OF AGENDA
#20-125 MOVED BY CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: CLLR ANDERSON

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest at the Special Meeting of Council on Tuesday, June
2, 2020.

4, NEW BUSINESS

Award of Lift Station #8 Tender

| RECOMMENDATION:

#20-124 MOVED BY: CLLR ANDERSON
SECONDED BY: CLLR DUFORD

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER award the Lift Station #8 tender to 851791
NWT Ltd. (Rowe’s Construction) in the amount of $5,818,720.07.

| BACKGROUND:

The tender call for the construction of the new Lift Station #8 was issued on April 13", 2020. The
tender period closed at 3:00pm on May 22", 2020 and the following bids were received:

851791 NWT Ltd. (Rowe’s Construction) - $5,818,720.07
Wildstone Construction & Engineering Ltd. - $7,090,152.00
Northern Industrial Construction Ltd. - $5,932,356.40

AGS Mechanical Contractors Ltd. - $6,566,625.00

Our consultant for the project, Stantec Architecture Ltd., has reviewed all submissions for
compliance and has recommended award to Rowe’s Construction.

Page 1 0of 4



/Jﬂ}/e'tgé’lw SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES June 2™, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

The tender is for the construction of a new lift station for the Town of Hay River with construction
work to take place starting in the summer of 2020, continuing through 2021, with a completion date
of February 28", 2022.

The new lift station is being constructed in accordance with the recommendations from the Overall
Lift Station System Assessment Report that was completed for the Town by Stantec Consulting Ltd.
in 2019. Originally this project was intended to be completed by spring 2021, however, issues on a
GNWT level due to the COVID-19 situation has delayed the lease approval of the land required for
this project. This has caused the timeline for the construction to be pushed back by almost a year
and means that a significant portion of the project will now be completed in 2021.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

N/A

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: |

The approved 2020 budget for this project was $6,142,500.00 which included consultant and
construction costs as well as a contingency amount. With the award of this contract the current
spending on the project for consultant and construction costs will be $6,593,620.07 leaving the
project underfunded by $451,120.07. Administration has identified $500,000 from the Water Intake
Line Inspection project that was approved in the 2020 budget that can be reallocated to this project.
The Water Intake Line project was budgeted at $550,000 but the initial estimate we have received
from the contractor on this project is $50,000. Reallocating these funds would provide enough to
cover the total costs of the project but would leave very little contingency available to the project. As
noted above, the timeline for the construction phase of this project has been extended due to lease
issues and therefore administration is recommending that an additional $200,000 be identified in the
2021 budget for contingency expenses on this project. Administration will bring forward a future
report to Council along with the 2020 Q2 or Q3 financial reporting that confirms the source for this
additional contingency funding.

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

Not award the Lift Station #4 tender.

| ATTACHMENTS:

Stantec Architecture Ltd. letter for the Tender Recommendation — Lift Station #8

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Mike Auge Judy Goucher

Director of Public Works Senior Administrative Officer
Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 29, 2020

Page 2 of 4



/Jﬂ}/e'tgé’lw SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES June 2™, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

5. BYLAWS

a) Bylaw 2386 — Porritt Landing Bylaw — First Reading

#20-125 MOVED BY: CLLR DOHEY
SECONDED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD
CARRIED
Bylaw 2386 — Porritt Landing — Second Reading
#20-126 MOVED BY: CLLR DOHEY
SECONDED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS
CARRIED
6. IN CAMERA
#20-127 MOVED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR
SECONDED BY: CLLR DUFORD
That the Council of the Town of Hay River move to In Camera at 7:59pm.
CARRIED
#20-128 MOVED BY: CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD
That the Council of the Town of Hay River move out of In Camera At 8:40PM.
CARRIED
7. ADJOURNMENT
#20-129 MOVED BY: CLLR WILLOWS
That the Regular Meeting of Council be adjourned at 8:09pm.
CARRIED

Page 3 of 4



/Jﬂgf/&'ﬁé’b SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES June 2™, 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

Certified Correct as Recorded on the 2" Day of June 2020

These minutes were accepted by motion #

Mayor

Senior Administrative Officer

Page 4 of 4



fﬁ REPORT TO COMMITTEE

/U t'tié’b

NQRTHWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: Public Works DATE: June 2, 2020
SUBJECT: Public Works Report for March through May 2020
| RECOMMENDATION:

MOVED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS
SECONDED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER accepts the Public Works Report for
the months of March — May 2020.

| BACKGROUND:

Public Works Daily Operations:

Public Works staff continued with regular operations and maintenance work on the Town’s
water, sewer, roads & sidewalks, vehicles, and infrastructure. The following is a summary of the
work completed this month:

Regular Operations and Maintenance Items

Item Activity

Water & Sewer Water shut offs and turn ons as requested
Water and Sewer inspections of areas of concern
Water and Sewer locates as required

Meter readings taken

Flushing of lines

Meter replacements

Month end water report

Water & Sewer Facilities | Daily inspections of facilities

Roads Snow clearing work
Sanding activities
Street sweeping

Sign repairs as needed
Grading of gravel roads

Other Regular fleet maintenance
Funerals
Steam and flush culverts and manholes

Clear, monitor and operate storm gates during river
breakup




Fﬁ REPORT TO COMMITTEE

/(f a'tié’b

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: Public Works DATE: June 2, 2020

SUBJECT: Public Works Report for March through May 2020

Monitor ravine and other flooding areas during spring
melt

Landfill Operations:
The Landfill continued regular operations and monitoring activities throughout the months.

The ICIP funding agreement for removal of tires has been finalized. Currently working with
GNWT to develop plan to have tires removed from site as soon as possible in 2020. COVID
travel restrictions may cause issues.

Water Licence Activities:

Regular monitoring programs continue as per the requirements of the Town’s water licence with
the Spring SNP monitoring set for early June. The 2019 Annual Report was submitted to the
MVLWB in March and is currently under review with approval and recommendations expected
in June.

The Town’s water licence renewal application was submitted to the Mackenzie Valley Land and
Water Board on September 16", 2020. Technical Sessions were held on February 11" — 13" in
Hay RIver with people from MVLWB, KFN, GNWT — ENR, ECCC, AECOM, and the Town of
Hay River in attendance.

The entire timeline for the renewal process has been delayed by the MVLWB due to COVID
concerns and difficulties in organizing public meetings. The Town is up to date on all required
submissions for the renewal process and no major issues have arisen in the renewal process.
The current water licence is expected to be extended by the MVLWB with a new licence likely
being issued in early 2021.

Capital Projects 2020:

A list of 2020 Capital Projects along with an update of the status of these projects is included
below. Any capital projects from 2019 that were not substantially completed have been carried
over and are included on this list.

2020 Capital Projects

Project Update

closed on May 22nd with 4 submissions received.

Lift Station System Upgrade Working on acquisition of land. Tender for the construction




yf'%

DEPARTMENT:

."-

we’b

NGRTHWEST TERRITORIES

Public Works

SUBJECT:

Fraser Place Development

REPORT TO COMMITTEE

DATE: June 2, 2020

Public Works Report for March through May 2020

Plans have been revised to use a smaller drill for the
geotechnical investigation in order to avoid the need for a LUP.
Project has been postponed due to COVID travel restrictions.
Updated timeline for geotechnical investigation expected in
early June.

Caribou Crescent Water, Sewer, and Drainage

Tender has been awarded to Rowe's Construction. Start-up
meeting has been held with project work to begin in June.

Water Treatment Plant and Reservoir Roof
Upgrades

Project has been completed.

Water Licence Renewal

Ongoing - See Water Licence section

Commercial Water Meter upgrade

Majority of meters have been purchased and a portion have
been installed. Remainder to be done as time permits.

Landfill Waste Projects (Tires and others)

Working with GNWT to determine best approach and
destination for tires from the landfill. Work expected to take
place this summer. COVID restrictions have caused uncertainty
in the timeline for this project.

Paradise Road Realighnment

Scheduled for summer 2020.

Lift Station #2 Demolition

Work completed for 2019, some minor landscaping work to be
completed this summer.

Sewer Flusher (Equipment)

Tender for this equipment to be finalized and put out for
competition in June.

Beaver Crescent Water, Sewer, and Drainage

Surveying and design to be completed in 2020, construction in
2021.

Riverview Drive Upgrade

Surveying and design to be done in 2020.

Capital Drive Watermain

Design work to be completed in 2020.

Treatment Plant Intake Inspection

Work to take place in August 2020. COVID travel restrictions
may delay this project to 2021, working with contractor to
determine feasibility for 2020.

Old Town Hall Demolition

Town Hall has been cleared of items, work with consultant to
begin in June to determine timeline for tender and demolition
work.

Capital Projects 2019:

Minor follow-up and yard reconstruction on 2019 capital projects is scheduled to take place in
the summer of 2020. Public Works has met with the contractor on these projects and is

——




Wz

Fh

."-

we’b

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT:

SUBJECT:

REPORT TO COMMITTEE

Public Works

DATE: June 2, 2020

Public Works Report for March through May 2020

expecting a schedule and workplan for the remaining work to be submitted in early June. All
work expected to be completed by the end of the summer.

Planning:

17 Development Permits and 2 Building Permits were approved from March through May 2020.
In this timeframe in 2019, there were 32 Development Permit and 12 Building Permits signed
out. The Development and Building report is as follows:

DATE DEV # CIVIC ADDRESS DESC. OF WORK
Mar 01/20 DH20- 6 Taylor Place Home Opcupatlon (D&D Demolition &
017 Contracting).
DH20- 10B Ptarmigan Home Occupation (Outdoor Adventure and
Mar 05/20 .
018 Crescent Tourism).
Mar 9/20 D20-027 | 11 Balsam Drive ace)mglish Old and set up new Manufactured
DH20- . .
Mar 10/20 019 15 Eagle Crescent Home Occupation (Campbell Studios).
DH20- Home Occupation (Cabinets North 2016,
Mar 11/20 020 4 Parker Place Woodworking).
Mar 12/20 | D20-021 | 41 Studney Drive Power transfer from one shop to another
shop on same property.
DH20- Home Occupation (Wild Wayne Enterprises,
Mar 13/20 022 24 Cranberry Crescent Welding Contractor).
Mar 16/20 | D02-023 | 296 Miron Drive New 2000 sq. ft. House c/w Attached
Garage.
Mar 17/20 | D20-024 | 5 Steiner Place Demolish existing house only no re-
development applied for at this time.
Mar 27/20 | D20-025 | 52 Wildrose Drive Portable Camp Trailer to house local Staff at
site (for safety during Covid 19).

—t




Wz

Fh

."-

REPORT TO COMMITTEE

we’b
DEPARTMENT: Public Works DATE: June 2, 2020
SUBJECT: Public Works Report for March through May 2020
DH20- Home Occupation (Mckay Contracting,
Mar 30/20 026 20 Wild Current Court Commercial & Residential Floor Installation
& Carpentry).
Apr 2/20 DH20- 5 Mackie Place Horr_le Occupation, Cold Cash ATM (ATM
028 Business)
DH20- , :
Apr 9/20 029 7 Gaetz Drive Home Occupation (Crafts and Care
Apr 27/20 ([));OZO' 262 Paradise Road Home Occupation (Doorstep Delivery)
D20- 41 John Mapes Construct new stick built 1482 sq. ft. single
May 1/20 031, Crescent family bungalow c/w attached garage
B20-005 y bung garage.
May 15/20 | D20-032 43 John Mapes Construct new stick built 33’ X 46’ 1464/1490
Crescent sq. ft. duplex
May 22/20 | D20-033 | 7 Swallow Drive 54’ X 6 with lattice top privacy fence 3
inside property line.
May 27/20 | D20-034 | 82 Paradise Road De_m_ollsh old and build new 16’ X 20’ office
building
42003 Mackenzie New Barge Loading Terminal at Island D
May 28/20 | B20-005 Highway Development applied for in 2019, D19-047

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS: |

- Mackenzie Valley Land and Water Board Town of Hay River License #MV2009L3-0005
- Bylaw 1812 Zoning and Building Bylaw

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

——
[6)]
| —




ﬂ REPORT TO COMMITTEE

/U t'tié’b

NQRTHWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: Public Works DATE: June 2, 2020
SUBJECT: Public Works Report for March through May 2020
| ATTACHMENTS:
N/A
Prepared by: Mike Auge Reviewed by: Judy Goucher
Director of Public Works SAO
May 28, 2020 May 29, 2020




&
”mﬁESS REPORT TO COMMITTEE

sssssssssssssssss

COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

| RECOMMENDATION:

MOVED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD
SECONDED BY: CLLR DUFORD

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER accepts the Tourism and Economic
Development Report for the month of April 2020.

| BACKGROUND: |

Tourism Activity:

e COVID-19 related orders issued by the Office of the Chief Public Health Officer resulted
in the closure of the NWT border. Associated tourist traffic was not permitted for the
month of April. Visitor Information Centre was closed and Tourism and Economic
Development Coordinator worked from home.

e Social media advertising focused on reminders to potential visitors to be safe and plan a
trip to Hay River once the lockdown is lifted.

Economic Development Activity:
¢ A funding application totaling $750,000 was prepared and submitted to CanNor to
support various community tourism initiatives identified in the Town of Hay River’s 2020
Tourism Development plan.
e Completed the Community Tourism Coordinator ITI funding report for the first year of the
Tourism & Economic Development Coordinator position. This is the second 2-year
agreement the Town has entered into to offset salary costs for this position.

Other Activity:

¢ Information was gathered to support the creation of a recreation guide with the
Recreation Department.

¢ Finalized designs and installed two trailhead signs along the local Great Trail. Signs for
the Oxbow Trail segment were designed and will be installed in May.

o Work was undertaken to develop the Town of Hay River 2020 Tourism Marketing Plan.
It will be submitted to Council for approval in May.

o Prepared VIC sewer dump for trailers expected with the Vale Island evacuation.

¢ Finalized photo licenses for the tourism highway signs. Finalized designs of tourism
highway signs send to Poison Graphics for printing.




A
#ﬂﬁfg REPORT TO COMMITTEE

sssssssssssssssss

COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Key Performance Indicators:
External Funding Success

- CanNor Expanding Tourism Platform application for $775,000 was submitted.

2020 External Funding Success

$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000

S_ — e e Bl e e e e e e e

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

B Submitted ™ Approved




’3‘6?3 REPORT TO COMMITTEE

teer
COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Visitor Information Centre Visitation

VIC was closed to the public starting in mid-March due to COVID-19 outbreak.

2020 VIC Visitors by Location

140
120

100
80
60
40
o 11
0
§8 535

> o
Q ®© c
S
=

Visitors

July
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec

B Canada HUSA Europe M Asia M Other

VIC Visitors by Year

1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200

Visitors




A
#ﬂﬁég REPORT TO COMMITTEE

sssssssssssssssss

COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Gift Shop Sales

VIC was closed to the public mid-March due to COVID-19 outbreak.

Gift Shop Sales

$16,000.00
$14,000.00
$12,000.00
$10,000.00
$8,000.00
$6,000.00
$4,000.00

$2,000.00 I I I I I
oin B0 BB wm -

$0.00

m 2018 m2019 m2020

Inbound Marketing

e Promotion through social media still remains the focus for marketing. Ad in Up Here Magazine
was issued.
Visitor Satisfaction Rating
o We have been working with ITI, NWT Parks and Spectacular NWT to create NWT wide visitor
metrics that will be of value to all involved. Currently in discussion.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

N/A

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:




&
”’3«5’3 REPORT TO COMMITTEE

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Peter Magill Glenn Smith
Tourism and Economic Development Coordinator ASAO

Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020




&
”mﬁESS REPORT TO COMMITTEE

sssssssssssssssss

COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

RECOMMENDATION:

MOVED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS
SECONDED BY: CLLR WILLOWS

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER accepts the Tourism and Economic
Development Report for the month of May 2020.

CARRIED
| BACKGROUND: |

Tourism Activity:

o COVID-19 related orders issued by the Office of the Chief Public Health Officer resulted
in the closure of the NWT border. Associated tourist traffic was not permitted for the
month of April. Visitor Information Centre was closed and Tourism and Economic
Development Coordinator worked from home.

o Work started on a ‘Staycation’ tourism marketing campaign for the Hay River area.
Gathering information on attractions, adventures and events to promote travel and stay
in Hay River and surrounding area to NWT travelers.

o Town of Hay River 2020 Tourism Marketing Plan was completed and approved by
Council. Contribution funding will be required to support the execution of the plan.

e Social media advertising focused on reminders to potential visitors to be safe and plan a
trip to Hay River once the lockdown is lifted.

Economic Development Activity:
e Prepared and submitted a funding proposal Agriculture Development Program for the
installation of food safe flooring in the Fisherman’s Wharf Pavilion vendor booths.
o Prepared ITI SEED funding proposals for Porritt Landing and conferencing hosting
equipment.

Other Activity:

o Attended the WSCC webinar on safety in the workplace and WSCC services presented
by the NT Chamber of Commerce.

e Prepared and submitted the first progress report for the Oxbow Trail interpretive signage
creation and installation.

o Created a COVID 19 safety plan for the VIC sewer dump, installation of glove dispenser
and hose for clean out of RVs and trailers for the long weekend and the coming month
until the VIC is open again.




A
#ﬂﬁfg REPORT TO COMMITTEE

sssssssssssssssss

COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Key Performance Indicators:

External Funding Success

- Submission of ITI Northern Food Development Program application for food safe flooring at
the Fisherman’s Wharf Pavilion for $43,500.
- Submission of CAP Infrastructure funding application for $40,000.

2020 External Funding Success

$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000

$100,000
> __ M _______

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

B Submitted M Approved




mﬁég REPORT TO COMMITTEE

teer
COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Visitor Information Centre Visitation
¢ VIC was closed to the public mid-March due to COVID-19 outbreak.

2020 VIC Visitors by Location VIC Visitors by Year
1500
¢ 100 v 1000
2 I
> 50 £ 500
0 I 0
cQ 5 5z 9¢>wayg =9
S e s § 328020
B Canada mUSA Europe M Asia M Other 2019 2018 2020

Gift Shop Sales
¢ VIC was closed to the public mid-March due to COVID-19 outbreak.

Gift Shop Sales

$15,000.00
$10,000.00
$5,000.00 I I
sooo milim [ | - | I I I I - I
N () X < < X X
\}’b‘* K\)'b\A 'b@}\ VQQ\ @’b* \\)Q \&* @)‘9 \ozz, 60@ ((‘\QQ’ <50®
\q}\ <((;Jo S V& Oc‘} <& &
) éo QQ
C)

w2018 m2019 m2020

Inbound Marketing
e Promotion through social media still remains the focus for marketing. Ad in Up Here Magazine.

Visitor Satisfaction Rating
o We have been working with ITI, NWT Parks and Spectacular NWT to create an NWT wide visitor
metrics that will be of value to all involved. Currently in discussion.




&
”mﬁég REPORT TO COMMITTEE

oooooooooooooooooooo

COMMITTEE: STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL DATE: JUNE 2, 2020
DEPARTMENT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

N/A

|_FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Peter Magill Glenn Smith
Tourism and Economic Development Coordinator ASAO

Date: May 28, 2020 Date: May 28, 2020




ﬂ«é’a

we’b

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

DEPARTMENT: GOVERNANCE DATE: June 2", 2020

SUBJECT: MAYORS MONTHLY REPORT

| RECOMMENDATION:

MOVED BY: CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: CLLR DOHEY

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER accepts the “Mayors Report” for May 2020
as presented.

| BACKGROUND: |
Mayor's May 2020 Meetings
Date Meeting with or Attended Location
Meeting with NWTAC and
May 1st 2020 the Premier Conference Call

May 2" 2020

May 5th 2020

May 7t 2020

May 8t 2020

May 12t 2020

May 13t 2020

May 19th, 2020

May 2274, 2020

May 22742020

EMO Covid/Breakup Meeting
with the Emergency
Measures Organization

EMO Covid/Breakup Meeting
with the Emergency
Measures Organization

EMO Covid/Breakup Meeting
with the Emergency
Measures Organization

Meeting with NWTAC and
the Premier

EMO Covid/Breakup Meeting
with the Emergency
Measures Organization

Meeting with NWTAC &
Minister of MACA

EMO Covid/Breakup Meeting
with the Emergency
Measures Organization

Meeting with NWTAC and
the Premier

Policy Committee

Zoom Meeting

Zoom Meeting

Zoom Meeting

Conference Call

Zoom Meeting

Conference Call

Zoom Meeting

Conference Call

Zoom Meeting

L



ﬂ«éa STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

sssssssssssssssss

May 25t 2020 Power Franchise Meeting Conference Call

EMO Covid/Breakup Meeting
with the Emergency
May 26, 2020 Measures Organization Zoom Meeting
Meeting with KFN, Federal
Government and Territorial
May 27t 2020 Government Conference Call

May 29t 2020 Meeting with RCMP RCMP Back Parking Lot

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

N/A

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

Prepared by:
Kandis Jameson
Mayor

Date: May 29", 2020




#ng%‘gg REPORT TO COUNCIL
ay Jiver

lver
DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: June 9%, 2020
SUBJECT: LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR KATLO TECH
| RECOMMENDATION: |

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER directs Administration to draft a
letter supporting Katlo Tech Communications for the next generation fiber optic network.

| BACKGROUND: |

On May 26" Lyle Fabian with Katl Tech Communications presented to Council with a vision to
enhance and contribute to the betterment of First Nations communities through advancing fiber
optic innovative technology highway and green modular data centers throughout the NWT. The
prospect of leading to substantially improved economic development opportunities and enhance
the North’s tech industry and innovation for First Nations, all the while, creating employment,
training, and educational opportunities for citizens.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

N/A

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

Draft Letter of Support from Cheetah Resources

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Stacey Barnes Judy Goucher
Council Administrator Senior Administrative Officer

June 5™ 2020 June 5" 2020



ﬂ"ﬁgg REPORT TO COUNCIL

” rer

NDR HWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION DATE: June 9, 2020

SUBJECT: Motion of Approval 2020 — 2021 CPI Contribution Agreement

| RECOMMENDATION:

THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER approves the Community Public
Infrastructure (CPl) Agreement for 2020 — 2021 in the amount of $1,510,000.

| BACKGROUND: |

Each year Council approves a funding agreement with Government of Northwest Territories for
CPI the period April 15t to March 31st of the following year.

For this year April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 the agreement for CPI Funding is in the amount of
$1,510,000. This amount is equivalent to what was included in the 2020 capital budget.

Payment will be received as soon as practicable after the signing of the agreement.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

To obtain Capital Funding for the current budget year.

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

Town of Hay River Capital Budget for 2020

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

$1,510,000 of capital funding for 2020’s calendar year.

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

N/A
| ATTACHMENTS: |

CPI Contribution Agreement.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Sam Mugford, CPA, CA Judy Goucher
Director of Finance and Administration SAO

June 4, 2020 June 4, 2020




&
ﬂqg%g REPORT TO COUNCIL

/J Lwe’

NDR'HWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: IT INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICE RATIONALIZATION
| RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER approves the proposed IT framework
and the subsequent renewal of the current IT service contract with Arctech Computers
under revised terms necessary to implement and support the updated framework.

| BACKGROUND:

A rationalization of the Town’s IT services was completed with the goal of finding opportunities
to reduce the Town of Hay River’s (Town) IT costs while achieving an acceptable level of
service to support business processes. Through use of evolved technologies and support
options, cost reductions and cost controls are estimated at 40% over current (expired)
contracted pricing and capital equipment purchases.

Information Technology rationalization is a set of techniques and approaches to understand,
guide, and monitor technology investment decisions. Cost-containment is a driving benefit of
rationalization but process efficiency and positioning the organization to meet growth are also
leading factors for the exercise. Understanding “why do we need this?” and ensuring the
proper tools are in place will maximize the technology value proposition. The primary objective
of rationalization is to maximize investments, improve strategic alignment and significantly
reduce costs and overall complexity.

The Town of Hay River currently benefits from a relatively strong investment in both
infrastructure technology and support services. Perceived value has been returned through
not only high service uptimes but also through a competent local support provider and architect
that provides a high level of support service and strong response times.  This has resulted in
optimized business processes and strong employee efficiency for knowledge workers who rely
heavily on IT. Very little business interruption has been identified through the length of the
current contract.

Through IT service rationalization, the question on if service levels and the subsequent pricing
for the service are too high is approached. In 2012, an independent IT Services Assessment
was conducted by the Town of Hay River to review the then current IT requirements and the
support structure to determine if appropriate pricing and services were being offered and in
alignment with market. It also researched other options that may be available to help with
service cost control. The results of the study concluded that the service levels were
appropriate and associated contracted service and infrastructure pricing was in alignment with
market.

There are a few opportunities for infrastructure and service change that were not explicitly
identified in the report that are apparent today. The exclusion in the study could be in part due




&
ﬂqg%g REPORT TO COUNCIL

/J Lwe’

NDR'HWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: IT INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICE RATIONALIZATION

to the advancement in technology offerings in the eight years since the study was conducted.
These opportunities are presented in the remainder of this Council report as recommendations
for implementation with a primary target of cost reduction and cost control without significant
sacrifice to core service levels.

Infrastructure Design — Cloud Computing

A key opportunity for reducing capital technology investments is a general infrastructure
topology change that would see a partial shift from on-premise hosting of servers, data, and
applications to a Cloud hosting model. Cloud models provide benefits of economies of scale
and subsequent cost savings through shared uses of computing infrastructure. There are also
the benefits of uptime and business continuity that are difficult to achieve without a large in-
house investment in IT capital. While there are some inherent risks associated with someone
else hosting data and application services, the reality today is that these services have evolved
to a point where there is increased confidence in Cloud security, and related risks are now
typically higher for most SMEs in hosting their IT infrastructure on premise. Simply put it is
difficult for these organizations, including the Town, to invest in the same level of infrastructure
and human resources to meet investments of centralized, specialized Cloud providers.

Support and Maintenance — Managed Services

The move of infrastructure from an on-premise environment to the Cloud presents the additional
benefit of opportunities for new support, maintenance and application licensing. With servers,
business applications, desktop software, and data residing in the Cloud there is a shift in how
support and maintenance is completed. Again, there is a benefit of economies of scale in
theses areas and associated reductions in labour expense.

A proposed shift from a current custom outsourced service solution to a managed services
arrangement would better fit a new Cloud environment. Through this service a per user
account pricing approach would be used offering control and scalability in service pricing. The
managed services would include desktop level support, user management, equipment
maintenance, and productivity software licensing.

A service level change is also recommended from the current model. Currently off-hour
support is included as part of a fixed support fee arrangement. This provides the benefit of
guaranteed support for any off-hour needs. However, it reduces level of cost control by the
Town and is thought to be inflating contract costs. A variable rate model would be proposed for
off-hour support and requests for IT assistance would be approved through the department
responsible for IT contract management. Any special project IT work would be costed through
the project.




&
ﬂqg%g REPORT TO COUNCIL

/J Lwe’

NDR'HWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: IT INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICE RATIONALIZATION
Service and Infrastructure Change Results

Through rationalization of the Town IT services, significant cost savings are projected with a
small reduction to service levels. Cost savings are recognized through both capital and
operational budgets with capital reductions fully recognized through attrition as in-house
equipment becomes unnecessary. When fully recognized, combined committed cost savings
associated with related capital and service support and maintenance of approximately 40% or
between $85,000 to $105,000/ year.

Service Provider Options

In order to undertake the identified Cloud migration and recognize the benefits of a revised
support and maintenance model, a provider agreement needs to be established. Three options
that are available to the Town are presented as follows:

- Option 1: Renew the ArcTech service contract for a period of 24 months without issuing
an RFP. Negotiate revised terms to reflect managed service and service level rate
changes and achieve the desired savings (e.g. 40%). Familiarity with current operating
environment and systems will maximize savings while reducing operational risks and
impact to business productivity.

- Option 2: Issue a competitive RFP for outsourced IT Support Services with changes to
the existing infrastructure design and service options. No other local firms have been
identified that would be able to provide a comparable scope of services to those
provided through ArcTech.

- Option 3: Bring elements of IT support services in-house. Negotiate a short term
extension of the ArcTech service contract for a duration that would allow the Town to
hire and train the required staff and to complete knowledge transfer from ArcTech
employees to the new town employees. Given the requirement for off-hour maintenance
and monitoring, there would be difficulties in scheduling and a reliance on overtime and
leave coverage that would make this option unfeasible.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Council of the Town of Hay River undertake Option 1 —a 24 month
renewal of ArcTech’s service contract to reflect the new managed service model. A three
month period under the current agreement would be used to migrate identified services to the
Cloud. The core justification for the recommendation is as follows:

1. Extending the contract with Arctech with new terms will achieve the IT savings
goal that the Town has set.




REPORT TO COUNCIL

/J

NDR HWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: IT INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICE RATIONALIZATION
2. The new terms will include the requirement that Arctech continue to employ a

local IT support person.

3. Town can leverage value from the current IT provider to complete the re-tooling
of the IT framework. Arctech knows the current system and is the most efficient
option for setting up a new framework. A new provider coming in would have a
significant learning curve and likely to add to the cost and risks of establishing
the new framework.

4. Once the new IT framework is established, the RFP process for a longer term
agreement will be more competitive which will help control future IT service
costs.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

- Addressing expired contracts

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

- N/A

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

- Reduced committed capital and operational expenses of between $85,000 to
$105,000/ year

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

- Option 2: Issue a competitive RFP for outsourced IT Support Services with changes to
the existing infrastructure design and service options.

- Option 3: Bring the IT support services in-house. Negotiate a short term extension of
the ArcTech service contract for a duration that would allow the Town to hire and train
the required staff and to complete knowledge transfer from ArcTech employees to the
new town employees.

| ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

Prepared By: Reviewed By:
Glenn Smith Judy Goucher
Assistant Senior Administrative Officer SAO

June 3, 2020 June 3, 2020




m/? =t REPORT TO COUNCIL

ssssssssssssssssssss

DEPARTMENT: PROTECTIVE SERVICES DATE: JUNE 9, 2020

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY SERVICES MONTHLY REPORT

| RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER accepts the Emergency Services
Activity Report for May, 2020 as presented.

| BACKGROUND:

Summary:

All training for the Protective Services Departmant came to a halt on March 18, 2020 due to
social distancing concerns brought on by COVID-19. We submitted a plan c/w Standard
Operating Guidelines, Training Risk Assessments, and an Impact Mitigation Guide to Protect
NWT. The plans have been accepted and we will be starting training again on June 4, 2020.

All training will be skills based training and will be conducted outdoors so that physical
distancing can be maintained. If physical distancing can not be maintained the training will be
conducted with proper repiratory protection to ensure the safety of our First Reponders If we
identify any risks that may expose First Responders to COVID — 19 that training will not happen.

May was probably one of the busiest months we have had for Ambulance calls in a long while.
Including seniors we responded to 65 events.

Meetings:
COVID - 19 Meetings
Joint COVID/Breakup Meetings

During February 220.5, paid-on-call hours were served by the members of the HRFD for a year
to date a total of 1,320.5 hours.

STATISTICS

FUNCTION MAY MAY MAY MAY MAY MAY

2018 2019 2020 2018 YTD | 2019 YTD | 2020 YTD

Patient 22 19 27 62 59 83
Transfers

Medical

Emergency 10 17 27 63 70 98
Local




m/? =t REPORT TO COUNCIL

ssssssssssssssssssss

DEPARTMENT: PROTECTIVE SERVICES DATE: JUNE 9, 2020

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY SERVICES MONTHLY REPORT

Medical

Emergency 1 4 4 1 10 12
Reserve

Medical

Emergency 3 0 3 6 0 5
Highway

Medical

Emergency

Out of Town 0 0 1 9 4 2
Patients

Body

Transfer 1 0 1 S 3 °
Fires & 1 3 2 14 9 3
Rescues

False 2 3 1 10 9 16
Alarms

Training 4 4 0 20 21 10
Special 2 8 0 14 10 0
Training

Maintenance 4 4 2 19 19 11
Fire Permits 6 2 3 12 6 3
Firew_orks 0 0 0 2 0 0
Permits

Public

Safety 7 2 0 8 9 6
Inspections 5 3 2 30 48 13
MAINTENANCE

All daily/weekly/monthly maintenance activities were completed. Radios were replace on Tanker
1, Engine 1 and Resuce 5 due to equipment failures.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A




Pyst
,%# o 3 REPORT TO COUNCIL

DEPARTMENT: PROTECTIVE SERVICES DATE: JUNE 9, 2020

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY SERVICES MONTHLY REPORT

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

Fire Prevention Bylaw

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

Prepared by: Reviewed By:

Ross Potter Judy Goucher

Director Protective Services/Fire Chief Senior Administrative Officer
Date: June 2, 2020 Date: June 4™, 2020




ﬂ"«%’a

REPORT TO COUNCIL

wer
DEPARTMENT: PROTECTIVE SERVICES DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: MUNICIPAL ENFORCEMENT REPORT
| RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER accepts the Municipal Enforcement
Report for May, 2020 as presented.

| BACKGROUND
OFFENCE INQUIRY INVESTIGATED NO OFFENCES WARNINGS SHELTER | FINES |TOWED | RETURNED TO
SUBSTANTIATION OWNER
Animal Control Bylaw
Animal Abuse
Barking Dogs 1
Dog Attack
Dog Bites 2
Loose Cat
Loose Dogs 2 1 1

Sled Dog Complaints

Business License

No Business License

Traffic Bylaw

Vehicle Parking

1

Trailer Parking

ATV

Misc

Unsightly Bylaw

Ovwergrown Trees

Long Grass

Miscellaneous

Garbage

Unsightly Properties: 2

The Director, Protective Services is presently acting as the Bylaw Enforecemnt Officer due to a
shortage of staff. Patrols have been reduced from the 2 patrols per day, but we are still

responding to complaints. We are actively working on filling the position so that we can provide
full services once again.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

Bylaws as applicable




’3‘553 REPORT TO COUNCIL

rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr

DEPARTMENT: PROTECTIVE SERVICES DATE: JUNE 9, 2020

SUBJECT: MUNICIPAL ENFORCEMENT REPORT

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

Prepared by: Reviewed By:

Ross Potter Judy Goucher

Director, Protective Services Senior Administrative Officer
Date June 2, 2020 Date: June 4, 2020




REPORT TO COUNCIL

/awefo

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

ke

COMMITTEE: POLICY COMMITTEE DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: COUNCIL PROCEDURES BYLAW
| RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER accepts the Council Procedures
Bylaw report as information.

| BACKGROUND:

The Council Procedures Bylaw is the primary municipal governance document that
outlines the regulations and procedures used to conduct meetings of Council. It includes
the authorities of Council, Administration and the public, meeting schedules, committee
types, and rules of procedures. As part of a periodic review of the Council Procedures
Bylaw, it was determined that several terms were not in alignment with current practices
and binding Territorial legislation.

Administration completed a draft update to the bylaw, which included a survey of Council
members to determine interest surrounding some options. The Policy Committee met
on May 22, 2020 to review and propose some additional changes to the draft and is
recommending the updated version be adopted by Council.

A Tracked Changes version of the bylaw revision was too complex to produce due to the
extent and nature of the changes so a summary table in this report outlines the changes
reflected in the Bylaw that is presented for 1st and 2nd reading. Current and proposed
version of the bylaw are attached.

# Section Change or Comment

1 Header = Proper bylaw nomenclature to be added
2 Footer = Footer and page numbers added
3 General = MS Word styles applied wherever possible to provide
consistent formatting
4 Prelude = ‘as amended from time to time’ added after CTV Act name. This is

ensure that current legislation is referenced even as the GNWT may

update the Act




%
PW®EN  REPORT TO COUNCIL
/Ja? Luer

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

COMMITTEE: POLICY COMMITTEE DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: COUNCIL PROCEDURES BYLAW
5 2 = Definition for Councillor added because it is referenced in the
CTV Act

= Removal of the term in camera from the bylaw because the CTV Act
does not use that term; rather it uses Private Session or Private
Meeting.

= Definition for ‘Member’ tweaked

= ‘Public Notice’ changed to include the ability to include digital
notice.

6 6 = Seating order description updated to include the ability for the
Mayor to specify the seating order.

= Authority for seating order moved from SAO to Mayor

7 7 » Switching of Regular meeting days in winter and summer
= States Regular meetings will be held twice a month

= States that meeting schedule will be set at annual
Organizational Meeting

» Changing meeting start time to 6:30
= Changing three-hour adjournment time to 9:30
= Additional recesses can be added by Presiding Officer
8 13 = Adds terms for by-election option when Council vacancy:

* One vacancy on Council is declared more than eighteen
months before the next scheduled general election

* More than one vacancy on Council is declared between
eighteen months and twelve months before the next
scheduled general election.

9 17 = Material is to be provided to Council members at least two working
days prior to Regular meetings unless special authority for less
time is provided by the Mayor

= Store recording of meeting or the duration identified in the Town’s
Records Retention Policy

10 22 = New section to note Council Members participating remotely or
virtually may not participate in the Private Meeting portion of
Council meetings unless they affirm that they are alone and
cannot be overhead.

1 26 = Set deadline for the submission of items to the Senior
Administrative Officer for inclusion on the agenda for Council and
its Standing Committee meetings to 12:00 p.m. three working
days preceding the meeting.




REPORT TO COUNCIL

/J

NDR HWEST TERRITORIES

COMMITTEE: POLICY COMMITTEE DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: COUNCIL PROCEDURES BYLAW
12 31 » Tweak to recorded votes procedure

= Remove ability to abstain from vote

13 32 = Allows for video and audio broadcast of the open session of
meetings

14 39 = Requires the notice of statutory public hearings to include
digital channels

15 57 = Tweak to the public input session after Nomination day.

16 58 = Allows the SAO to let Council know if an Administrative
Enquiry will be overly burdensome

17 59 = Removes the specific names of Standing Committees

18 91 = Notes that a motion to adjourn does not need a seconder

19 95 = Adds some clarity on the unique numbering convention for
motions

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

- Update of bylaws

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

- Cities Towns and Villages Act
- Local Authorities Elections Act
- Conflict of Interest Act

- Bourinot’s Rules of Order

|_FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

- NA

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

- Do not amend Council Procedures Bylaw

| ATTACHMENTS:

- Current Council Procedures Bylaw
- Proposed Updated Council Procedures Bylaw




ﬂqg’; REPORT TO COUNCIL
& Y&
wet
COMMITTEE: POLICY COMMITTEE DATE: JUNE 9, 2020
SUBJECT: COUNCIL PROCEDURES BYLAW
Prepared By: Reviewed By:
Glenn Smith Judy Goucher
Assistant Senior Administrative Officer SAO
June 4, 2020 June 4, 2020




BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

BEING A BYLAW of the Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River in the Northwest
Territories to provide for the establishment, levy and collection of fees and charges for
services provided by the municipal corporation.

PURSUANT to the Cities, Towns and Villages Act, S.N.W.T., 2003, c 22, in force April 1,
2004, Section 72.

WHEREAS the Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River wishes to establish
regulations and charge fees for the use of Porritt Landing.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER,
in regular session duly assembled, enacts as follows:

1. That the fees and charges established to recover reasonable costs for the use of the
municipal corporation recreational facility know as Porritt Landing are attached as
Schedule “A”.

2. That the fees and charges set out shall be in force upon third and final reading of the
bylaw.

3. The council of the Town of Hay River hereby gives the SAO authority to approve
additions or changes to Bylaw 2386 when warranted by new circumstances or needs.
Any changes approved by the SAO are to be reviewed and approved by council at
further updates of the Porritt Landing Bylaw.

CITATION

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the Town of Hay River Porritt Landing
Bylaw No. 2386.

DEFINITIONS
In this Bylaw:

“‘Bylaw Enforcement Officer” means a person authorized to provide bylaw
enforcement services for the Town;

“‘Day Use” means mooring of a Watercraft at a designated day use dock or marina
area for a period not exceeding One Day;

“‘Day Use Area” means an area designated for Day Use;

“One Day” means a period commencing after 4:00 a.m. on one day and terminating



BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

not later than 2:00am of the following day;

“‘Owner” means any of:

a) the registered owner of a motor vehicle, as determined by the Department of
Motor Vehicles,

b) a Trailer Owner; or

a a Watercraft Owner

as defined by this bylaw;

“Porritt Landing” means the land within the Municipal boundary of the Town of Hay
River described as Lot 2133 Plan 4460, and Lot 651 Group 814 Plan 710 and the
water adjoining that land;

“Season” shall be June 1% to September 25" inclusive each year, regardless of
whether the water is free of ice for Watercraft use;

“‘Season Pass” means a pass which entitles the holder to moor one identified
Watercraft for a Season in an assigned Watercraft Slip;

"Short Term Docking Pass" means a pass which entitles the holder to moor one
identified watercraft for no more than 7 days in an assigned Short-Term Docking
Slip;

“Town” means the Town of Hay River;

“Trailer” means a trailer intended for the transport of a Watercraft;

“Trailer Owner” means either of a person in care and control of a Trailer while it is
located at Porritt Landing or the person who is the registered owner of the Trailer as

determined by the Department of Motor Vehicles;

“Watercraft” means any watercraft (including personal watercraft) designed to float,
plane, work or travel on water;

“Watercraft Owner” includes of the legal owner of a Watercraft and any person who
is in care and control of a Watercraft;

“Watercraft Slip” means a designated area for Seasonal mooring of Watercrafts



BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

WATERCRAFT SLIP SEASON PASSES

2 A Season Pass entitles the holder to moor one identified Watercraft in an assigned
Watercraft Slip.

3. Initial Watercraft Slip Season Passes will be issued through a lottery system.
Watercraft Slips will be assigned based on order of draw selection. Requests for
Watercraft Slip registrations and entry into the lottery will be made public seven
working days in advance of the lottery draw date.

4. Season Pass payment must be received within five business days of the draw.

5. A waiting list for Watercraft Slip Season Passes will be maintained by Town
Administration. The initial waiting list will be populated in accordance and in order
of draws through the lottery system and thereafter on a first come first served
basis.

6. Watercraft Slip Season Pass holders will be eligible to renew their passes.
Renewals will be accepted, and payment must be received yearly by the 2
Monday of May each year by 3:00pm local time. Failure to meet registration
deadline will result in offering of the Watercraft Slip to the next person on the
waiting list. A person offered a Watercraft Slip through the waiting list will have
five working days to respond to the request and make full payment.

7. Season Pass Watercraft registration decals are not transferable to another person.

8. Short Term Docking fees and charges are identified in Schedule “A” of this
document. Fees and charges can be amended or replaced when warranted by
new circumstances or needs. Any changes approved by the SAO are to be
reviewed and approved by council at further updates of the Porritt Landing Bylaw.

9. A Season Pass may not be transferred to another Watercraft without the consent
of the Town.

10. Only one identified Watercraft is to be moored in the identified slip at any given time.
Season Pass owners can purchase up to 2 additional Season Pass decals as per
the Town of Hay River's Omnibus Rates Bylaw. Appropriate proof of ownership is
required for the purchase of additional Season Pass decals.

1. If the holder of a Seasons Pass sells or otherwise transfers ownership of the
Watercraft, the Season Pass shall not be transferred to the new owner of the
Watercraft.

12 Season Pass holders who sell their Watercraft must advise the Town in writing of



BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

the date of sale and may retain their Watercraft Slip for the remainder of the
Season. Failure to register a new Watercraft before the renewal deadline for the
following Season will result in a loss of the Watercraft Slip.

13 Season Pass holders wishing to surrender their Watercraft Slip during the Season
shall notify the Town in writing of the effective date of the surrender. The Town
shall provide a pro-rated refund based on the number of days left in the Season
calculated from the later of the effective date specified in the notice of surrender or
the date the notice is received by the Town.

14. Season Passes shall be displayed on both the port (left) and starboard (right)
forward half (bow) of the Watercraft.

15. A Watercraft assigned a Season Pass shall not exceed the length or width
identified in the Watercraft Slip permit.

16. Attachments to a Watercraft shall not extend into the walkway when the Watercraft
is moored in such a manner as to interfere with foot traffic.

17. No person shall dock a Watercraft in a Watercraft Slip unless that person holds a
Season Pass for that Watercraft Slip.

18. All Watercraft must be removed from Porritt Landing on or before September 30th
of each year.

WATERCRAFT SHORT TERM DOCKING PASSES

19. A Short-Term Docking Pass entitles the holder to moor one identified Watercraft in
an assigned Watercraft Slip.

2. Short Term Docking fees and charges are identified in Schedule “A” of this
document. Fees and charges can be amended or replaced when warranted by
new circumstances or needs. Any changes approved by the SAO are to be
reviewed and approved by council at further updates of the Porritt Landing Bylaw.

21. A Short-Term Docking Pass may not be transferred to another Watercraft without
the consent of the Town.

2 If the holder of a Short-Term Docking Pass sells or otherwise transfers ownership
of the Watercraft, the Season Pass shall not be transferred to the new owner of the
Watercraft.

2. A Watercraft assigned a Short-Term Docking Pass shall not exceed the length or
width identified in the Watercraft Slip permit.



BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

2. Attachments to a Watercraft shall not extend into the walkway when the Watercraft
is moored in such a manner as to interfere with foot traffic.

2. No person shall dock a Watercraft in a Short-Term Docking Slip unless that person
holds a Short-Term Docking Pass for that Watercraft Slip

2. All Watercraft must be removed from Porritt Landing on or before September 30th
of each year.

DAY USE MOORING

7. No person shall permit a Watercraft to be moored at Porritt Landing for more than
One Day within the Day Use Area.

PARKING

2. No person shall park a vehicle or a Trailer other than in a designated parking area.

2. No person shall park a vehicle or Trailer for more than One Day.

WAIVER OF LIABILITY

0. The Town shall not be liable for damage to vehicles, Trailers, Watercraft or people
using Porritt Landing.

GENERAL

31. All persons using the Porritt Landing shall do so at their own risk.

32 The Town shall not be responsible for any damage or injury sustained to any
Watercraft, vehicle or person in the area known as Porritt Landing.

3. All dogs shall be kept on a leash while at the Porritt Landing unless they are
contained in a vehicle or Watercraft.

HA. A person must comply with all applicable bylaws, Territorial and Federal statutes
and regulations when using or occupying Porritt Landing;



BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

3b. A Watercraft Owner shall ensure the safe mooring of their Watercraft.

3. A Watercraft Owner shall furnish and maintain their own lines and chaffing gear.
Chaffing gear shall be attached to the Watercraft or tied to the floats; no other type
of fastening is permitted.

3. No person shall moor a Watercraft other than in an area identified for mooring.

3B No person shall moor a Watercraft in a manner that interferes unreasonably with the
mooring or access of another Watercraft

0. No person shall fuel a Watercraft while it is moored.

40. No person shall place or store flammable liquids, oily rags, or other debris, on floats
or municipal property, and any costs associated with the cleanup will be charged to
the Watercraft owner responsible.

41. No person shall store supplies, materials, accessories, articles, or debris anywhere
on Porritt Landing other than a refuse container.

42 No person shall construct any lockers, chests, cabinets or other structures, or
otherwise modify docks in any way.

43. No person shall conduct on-site repairs or maintenance of a Watercraft without the
prior written consent of the Senior Administrative Officer.

44. Walkways and fingers must be kept free of tenders, dinghies, materials, debris,
carpeting and equipment at all times.

45, Children under the age of 12 must be under the supervision of a person 12 years or
age or older at all times.

46. No person shall dispose of fish or fish parts in any waste container other than one
identified for that purpose.

ENFORCEMENT
47. Any Bylaw Enforcement Officer may enforce this bylaw in the course of their duties.

48, Any Bylaw Enforcement Officer may order a person who does anything contrary to
this bylaw to leave the Porritt Landing area immediately, or within a period of time
specified by the Bylaw Enforcement Officer, and every person so ordered shall
comply with the order and leave the Porritt Landing area immediately or within the
specified time period;



BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

490, Tickets issued for parking offences shall be issued to the motor vehicle’s owner,
unless otherwise indicated in this by-law.

0. No person shall hinder, oppose, molest or obstruct a Bylaw Enforcement Officer in
the discharge of their duties;

51. Any Bylaw Enforcement Officer, Peace Officer or emergency personnel, while acting
in the course of their duties, are exempt from the provisions of this bylaw.

2 The Town may remove any vehicles, Watercraft Trailers or Watercraft that are

parked or moored in violation of this bylaw at the Owner’s expense and risk and the
cost thereof shall be a debt due from the Owner to the Town.

PENALTIES

5. A person who violates this bylaw is subject to a fine of $250 unless an alternate
amount is identified in Schedule “A”.

HA. The Town reserves the right to cancel the Season Pass of any Season Pass holder
who is in violation of this bylaw.

REPEAL

6. That Bylaw No. 2386/GEN/18 is hereby amended.



BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

READINGS AND ADOPTION

READ a first time this day of , 2020.
Mayor
READ a second time this  day of 2020
Mayor
READ a third and final time this  day of 2020.
Mayor

CERTIFIED that this bylaw has been made in accordance with the requirements of the Cities, Towns
and Villages Act, S.N.W.T., 2003, c.22, in force April 1, 2004 and the bylaws of the Municipal
Corporation of the Town of Hay River this day of , 2020.

Senior Administrative Officer



BY-LAW NO. 2386
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BY-LAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER TO ESTABLISH
A BYLAW TO REGULATE AND CHARGE FEES FOR THE USE OF PORRITT LANDING

SCHEDULE “A”
Schedule of Fees and Charges

OFFENSE FINE
Season Pass (annual fee for one Watercraft) $470
Season Pass (3-year renewal for one Watercraft) $1410
Additional Season Pass decals (max 2 additional passes) $50/boat/yr
Short Term Docking Pass $30/day
Parking a Watercraft without an appropriate pass $300
Parking a vehicle or Watercraft Trailer in a no parking area $ 300
Parking a vehicle or Watercraft Trailer in excess of the One Day time limit $300
Mooring a Watercraft in excess of the One Day time limit in the Day Use Area $ 300
Failure to properly display registration decals $ 100
Failure to remove moored Watercraft by September 30t $ 300
Fueling a Watercraft while moored $300
Failure to keep a dog on a leash $75

All fines paid and received at the Town of Hay River (Town Hall) before the court date indicated
on the ticket, shall be reduced by fifty (50%) percent off the total fine amount indicated on the
ticket. This shall only apply for offences indicated in this bylaw.



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

BEING A BY-LAW of the Council of the Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River to
establish rules providing for the orderly, open and efficient conduct of its meetings;

PURSUANT TO Sections 29-33 inclusive, of the Cities, Towns and Villages Act, S.N.W.T. 2003,
c.22 as amended from time to time;

WHEREAS Council shall pass such by-laws and make such regulations for the governing of
proceedings of Council;

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River, in
Regular Meeting duly assembled, enacts as follows:
PART 1 - GENERAL
Short Title
1. This bylaw shall be cited as the Council Procedures Bylaw

Definitions
2. In this bylaw;

“Council” Means the Council of the Town of Hay River inclusive of
the Mayor and other Councillors;

“Councillor” Means a member of Council other than the Mayor;

“Director” Means the head of any department of the Town of Hay
River, or any other person appointed to act on their behalf;

“Member” Means any member of Council, inclusive of the Mayor. Also

‘Council Member’;

“Pecuniary Interest Means a direct or indirect pecuniary interest as defined in

the Conflict of Interest Act;

“Presiding Officer” Means the Mayor or in the absence of the Mayor, the
Deputy Mayor, or in the absence of both, any other
Member chosen to preside over a meeting;

“Private Meeting” Means a meeting or portion of a meeting which is closed to
the public in accordance with Section 23 of the Cities,
Towns and Villages Act. Also ‘in camera’ or ‘Closed
Session’.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 1



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

“Public Notice” Means according to section 165 of the Cities, Towns and
Villages Act, when public notice is required, the notice must
be given to the general public in one or more of the
following ways:

(i by inserting the notice at least once in a newspaper
circulating in the municipality;
(ii) by mailing or delivering a copy of the notice to the

household of each adult resident in the municipality;

(iii) by causing announcements to be made on a radio
or television station received in the municipality on
at least three separate days;

(iv) by posting a notice in at least five widely separated
and conspicuous places in the municipality.

In addition to statutorily required forms of notice, the Town

will provide notice through digital channels such as the
Town website and social media channels.

“Special Resolution” Means a Resolution requiring the approval of two-thirds of
the Members in attendance at a Regular Meeting of Council
or two-thirds of the members of a standing or special
committee present at a meeting.

“Statutory Public Hearing” Means a hearing required to be held pursuant to a statute
of the Northwest Territories or a by-law of the Town before
a proposed by-law may be enacted.

Appointment of Acting Mayor

3. Where both the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are absent or unable to perform their duties,
Council shall appoint an Acting Mayor.

Suspension or Modification

4. Except where bound by the term and provisions of an Act of the Northwest Territories or
an Act of Parliament, Council may suspend, by a Resolution unanimously approved by
all Members present at a meeting, any or all of the rules established by this by-law for
the whole or part of that meeting.

Reference Source
5. In all cases not provided for in this by-law, Bourinot’s Rules of Order, Fourth Revised
Edition and updated from time to time shall be followed so far as they are applicable.
PART 2 — MEETINGS — GENERAL CONDUCT
First Meeting

6. a. Prior to commencement of the first meeting of Council following a general
election, every member of Council shall take the Oath of Office.

b. The first meeting of the newly elected Council shall be held not later than forty-
five (45) days following a general election at such time and place as the Mayor
designates.

c. At this meeting Council shall by Resolution:

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 2



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

i. appoint a Deputy Mayor. The Deputy Mayor shall be selected
annually by and from among the Members by secret ballot during
the first Regular Meeting in November. This appointment shall be
reviewed and appointed annually;

ii. review, reconfirm and adopt the “Code of Conduct for Members of
Council”.

. The seating of Councillors shall be determined by the Mayor prior to the

commencement of the first Regular Meeting of Council after an election.

Seating of Councillors will be re-assigned each year at the first meeting in
November, or at an interval determined necessary by the Mayor.

Regular Meetings

7. a.

Regular Meetings of Council shall be held on Mondays twice a month for the
months of November through April, unless that day falls on a statutory holiday
observed by the Town, in which case the meeting shall be scheduled for the
following week.

Regular Meetings of Council shall be held on Tuesdays twice a month for the
months of May through October, unless that day falls on a statutory holiday
observed by the Town, in which case the meeting shall be scheduled for the
following week.

At each annual Organizational Meeting, Council shall, by Resolution, adopt a
schedule for Regular Meetings each year.

Regular Meetings of Council will commence at 6:30 p.m.

For a meeting to continue past the hour of 9:30 p.m. or three (3) hours after the
meeting commences, it will require the unanimous consent of Council. In a
case where a motion to extend the meeting past the designated hour is not
approved unanimously by Council, the meeting shall be considered adjourned
at 9:30 p.m.

Council may, by Resolution, change the time or date of any Regular Meeting of
Council, or cancel a future Regular Meeting, and provide public notice at least
seventy-two (72) hours or three (3) days in advance of the changed or
cancelled meeting.

The Mayor may cancel any Regular Meeting of Council if it is anticipated that
there will not be a quorum for the meeting or if there are no items for the
agenda provided that public notice of the cancellation is given at least twenty-
four (24) hours in advance.

Where the time or date of any Regular Meeting is changed, or a meeting is

cancelled pursuant to subsections f) or g), the Senior Administrative Officer
shall give written notice to:

i.  All members of Council
ii. All Directors; and
iii.  The media who normally attend Council meetings.

At all Regular Meetings of Council and any properly constituted Standing
Committees, there shall be a ten (10) minute recess after ninety (90) minutes of
continuous business, unless such recess is waived by the unanimous consent
of the Members in attendance. Additional recesses can be included at the call
of the Presiding Officer.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 3



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

j- Section 23 of the Cities, Towns and Villages Act, relating to the holding of
Private Meeting sessions applies to all meetings of Council.

Special Meetings

8. a. A Special Meeting of Council may be called by the Mayor or any two (2)
Members at any time, and the calling of such meetings is in accordance with the
requirement of the Cities, Towns and Villages Act.

b. Where a Special Meeting has been called pursuant to subsection a), the Senior
Administrative Officer shall post public notice of the meeting and give at least
forty-eight (48) hours’ notice to:

i.  All members of Council
i.  All Directors; and
ii.  The media who normally attend Council meetings.

c. The notice referred to in subsection b) shall indicate the time, date, location
and purpose for the Special Meeting of Council.

d. No other business shall be conducted at a Special Meeting except that which is
included in the notice referred to subsection b) unless all Council members are
present and there is unanimous consent.

Emergency Meetings

9. A Member may call an Emergency Meeting of Council where the Member considers that
an emergency exists or may exist in the Town, and the calling of such a meeting is in
accordance with the Cities, Towns and Villages Act.

Quorum

10. a. A quorum for a regular or Special Meeting of Council shall be a majority of
Members who comprise the Council regardless of whether or not all the seats
on Council are filled.

b. A quorum of Council for an emergency meeting shall be all those Members in
attendance.

c. Where the number of Members who, by reason of having disclosed a pecuniary
interest in a matter pursuant to this by-law are prevented from participating in a
meeting, is such that the remaining number of Members present does not
constitute a quorum, the remaining number of Members present shall be
deemed to constitute a quorum, provided that such number is not less than
two.

Attendance

11. a. Any Member absent for three (3) consecutive Regular Meetings of Council,
without Council’s permission by Resolution passed at a Regular Meeting of
Council shall be deemed as resigned.

b. Permission for a Member to be absent from a Regular Meeting of Council
pursuant to subsection a) shall not be unreasonably denied.

c. Permission for a Member to be absent must be sought and brought to the
attention of Council in advance, and not later than the conclusion of the
meeting for which the Member of Council absents him or herself. Permission
shall in no case be for a period in excess of three (3) months.

d. Withholding of all or part of the annual indemnity monthly payment as a

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 4



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

consequence of Member absences without permission, is fully outlined in the
Town of Hay River Indemnities and Allowances By-Law.

12. The Senior Administrative Officer and all Directors shall attend Regular
Meetings of Council unless the Senior Administrative Officer has given
permission for them to be absent.

Vacancies on Council

13. a. Pursuant to the Local Authorities Elections Act, R.S.N.W.T. 1988, c.L-10,
vacancies in Office for a Councillor’'s seat or the Mayoral seat shall be filled at
the next general election or before then by:

i.  Appointing a person who is eligible as a candidate; or
i. Holding a by-election.

b. A by-election will be held if:

i.  One vacancy on Council is declared more than eighteen months
before the next scheduled general election

i.  More than one vacancy on Council is declared between eighteen
months and twelve months before the next scheduled general
election.

c. For the purposes of appointing a new Mayor pursuant to subsection a), the
municipal Council shall appoint only a member of the municipal council as the
mayor.

Commencement of Proceedings

14. a. As soon as possible after the hour fixed for the holding of the meeting of
Council, if a quorum is present, the Presiding Officer shall take the chair and
call the meeting to order.

b. Where the Mayor and the Deputy Mayor do not attend the meeting within
fifteen minutes after the time set for the meeting, the Senior Administrative
Officer shall call the Members to order and, if a quorum is present, call for a
motion for the appointment of a Presiding Officer from among those Members
present.

c. Ifa quorum is still not present one-half hour past the time set for the meeting,
the Senior Administrative Officer shall record the names of those Members
present and the meeting shall stand adjourned until the next Regular Meeting.
The agenda for the adjourned meeting will be dealt with at the next Regular
Meeting of Council unless a Special Meeting is called before the next Regular
Meeting to deal with the business of the adjourned meeting.

Duties of the Presiding Officer

15. The Presiding Officer of Council shall have the following duties at meetings of Council:

a. To open the meeting of Council by assuming the chair and calling the Members
to order;

b. To announce the business before Council in the order in which it is to be acted
upon;

c. To receive, submit to Council and put to a vote, in accordance with the rules of
procedure, all matters presented by the Members, and to announce the result;

d. To decline to put to a vote any motion that infringes upon the rules of
procedure;

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 5



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

e. To recognize any Member who wishes to speak on any matter that is debatable
and determines the right of precedence where two or more Members request
the floor of Council;

To enforce the rules of procedure;
To preserve order and decorum at meetings of Council;

h. To rule on any point of order or question of privilege raised by any Member;
and

i. To authenticate by signature all by-laws and minutes of Council.

«Q

Duties of a Member of Council
16. A Member shall, in addition to the requirements of section 34 of the Cities, Towns and
Villages Act, have the following duties at meetings of Council;
a. To deliberate the business submitted to Council;
b. To respect the rules of procedure;

c. To disclose a pecuniary interest in any matter before Council in accordance
with this by-law and the Conflict of Interest Act and remove him or herself from
the meeting when this item is under consideration.

Duties of the Senior Administrative Officer

17. The Senior Administrative Officer shall have the following duties at meetings of Council;

a. To prepare and distribute the agenda and supporting material for all meetings
of Council in accordance with the provisions of this by-law;

i.  All material for Council meetings shall be distributed to Members
at least two working days prior to the Council meeting unless the
Senior Administrative Officer receives approval from the Presiding
Officer in advance to defer the provision of some or all meeting
materials.

b. To provide information to Council, through the Presiding Officer;

c. To respond to any question directed to him or her through the Presiding Officer
or refer the question to the appropriate Director for response;

d. To provide advice to Council through the Presiding Officer on any matter;

e. To make a re-playable audio or video recording of all Council meetings and
store these recordings in a place of safekeeping for the duration identified in
the Town’s Records Retention Policy;

To keep the minutes of Council; and
g. To keep in his or her office or in the place appointed for that purpose the
originals of all by-laws and all minutes of the proceedings of Council.
Duties of Directors

18. Directors shall have the following duties at meetings of Council;

a. Inform themselves of any matter within their respective departments that is
likely to be considered at a meeting of Council; and

b. Respond through the Presiding Officer, to any question referred to him or her
by the Senior Administrative Officer.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 6



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Meetings Open to the Public

19. Pursuant to the Cities, Towns and Villages Act:

a. Except as provided for in Subsection b), all meetings of Council and its
Committees shall be open to the public and no person shall be expelled from
any meeting except for conduct in contravention of this by-law.

b. Council or a Committee of Council may, by Resolution approved by at least 2/3
of the Council Members present, authorize its meeting to be closed to the
public if it decides to discuss any of the following:

i commercial information that, if disclosed, would likely be
prejudicial to the municipal corporation or the persons involved;

ii. information received in confidence that, if disclosed, would be
prejudicial to the municipal corporation or the persons involved;

iii.  personal information, including personal information about
employees;

iv.  the salary, benefits or performance record of an employee;

v. a matter still under consideration and on which Council has not yet
publicly announced a decision, if discussion in public would likely
prejudice the municipal corporation’s ability to carry out its
activities or negotiations;

vi.  the acquisition or disposition of property by or on behalf of the
municipal corporation;

vii.  the setting of minimum tax sale prices under the Property
Assessment and Taxation Act;
viii.  the conduct of existing or anticipated legal proceedings;

ix.  the conduct of an investigation under, or enforcement of, an
enactment or by-law;

x.  information, the disclosure of which could prejudice public security
or the maintenance of law and order;

xi.  the security of documents or premises.

c. Council has no power to make a by-law or a Resolution at a meeting that is
closed to the public, other than a Resolution to:

i. give instructions to the municipal corporation’s lawyers or to any
persons negotiating a contract on behalf of the municipal
corporation;

ii. give directions to staff on confidential personnel issues; and

iii. adjourn the closed meeting or to revert to a public meeting.

d. Council shall make a public record of any meeting that is closed to the public,
specifying at a minimum:
i.  that Council met in private;
ii. the date of the meeting; and
iii.  the general nature of the issues discussed.

e. Following a Private Meeting a motion may be made to place on the agenda any
recommendations arising from the Private Meeting. Once placed on the
agenda, the normal rules of procedure shall apply.

20. Council may conduct a meeting using an electronic means of communication if it

enables the Members to hear and speak to each other and allows the public to hear the
Members. Members participating in the meeting in this manner are deemed to be

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 7



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

present.

21. If the circumstance of an Emergency Meeting as outlined in Section 9 of this Bylaw is
such that members of the public are unable to hear the Members, that will be
acknowledged as part of the meeting minutes.

22. Council Members participating remotely or virtually may not participate in the Private
Meeting portion of Council meetings unless they affirm on the record that they are alone
and cannot be overhead. Such affirmation shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.

PART 3 — AGENDAS AND MINUTES
Agenda Format

23. The agenda for regular Council meetings shall follow the Order of Business as set out in
Part 4 of this by-law.

24. The supporting material for each agenda shall follow the Order of Business as set out in
Part 4 of this by-law.

25. Items to be discussed at a Private Meeting shall clearly be marked “Confidential”.
Deadline for Submission of Agenda Items

26. The deadline for the submission of items to the Senior Administrative Officer for
inclusion on the agenda for Council and its Standing Committee meetings shall be 12:00
p.m. (noon) three working days preceding the meeting.

27. Items of an urgent nature may be submitted to the Senior Administrative Officer for
inclusion on the agenda of Council or its Standing Committees after the deadline
referred to in Section 27 if they cannot be delayed to a future meeting.

28. Notwithstanding Section 27, an item may be included on the agenda of Council or its
Standing Committees by approval of two-thirds (2/3) majority of Council Members
present.

Agenda Distribution

29. The Senior Administrative Officer shall prepare and distribute the agenda and all
supporting materials for Regular Meetings of Council and its Standing Committees to
Members by 5:00 p.m. two working days preceding the meeting.

30. The Senior Administrative Officer shall make copies of the agenda and supporting
materials available to Directors, media representatives and the general public with the

31. exception of supporting material scheduled to be considered at a Private Meeting and
only after the agenda and supporting materials have been delivered to all Members.
Minutes of Council

32. The Minutes of Council shall record:
a. the date, time and location of meeting;

b. the name of the Presiding Officer and the name of the Members and the Town
Administration present at the meeting;

c. the adoption of the minutes of previous meetings of Council;

d. the name of any Member who discloses a pecuniary interest in any matter on
the agenda, the general nature and extent thereof and the time that the
Member excused him or herself from and returned to the meeting.

e. any motion moved and seconded by Council and the name of the mover and

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 8



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

seconder

f. In cases of a recorded vote in accordance with the Cities, Towns and Villages
Act, the name of each Member who voted and how they voted,

g. inthe event of a tie vote, the minutes shall reflect that there was a tie and how
the Presiding Officer voted to break the tie a summary of the proceedings of
Council with the exception of those proceedings conducted during a Private
Meeting; and

h. the signatures of the Presiding Officer and the Senior Administrative Officer.
Recordings of Meetings

33. a. Except for those portions of meetings held during a Private Meeting, the Senior
Administrative Officer shall make, or cause to be made, a re-playable recording
of all Council Meetings.

i.  The recording may include a public audio and/or video broadcast
or webcast of proceedings of the Open Session.

b. The Senior Administrative Officer shall supervise access to the recordings of
meetings.

c. The recordings may be copied under the supervision of the Senior
Administrative Officer. Anyone other than a Member requesting a copy of the
audio-recordings will be required to pay a fee equal to the Town’s cost except
for copies which are required by the Town’s legal counsel in connection with
litigation. Any transcript of the recordings must be authorized by a Resolution of
Council.

PART 4 —- ORDER OF BUSINESS
Order of Business

34. a. The Order of Business at Regular Meetings of Council shall be as outlined in
Schedule A, attached to and forming part of the bylaw.

b. The business of Council shall always be dealt with in the order established in
Schedule A unless Council decides, by Resolution, on a different Order of
Business.

c. At all Special Meetings of Council, the Order of Business shall be set out and
printed in a manner decided by the Senior Administrative Officer, but should
this not be done, then the Order of Business set out in Schedule A shall be
used so far as it is applicable.

Adoption of Minutes from Previous Meeting(s)
35. a. The draft minutes of each meeting shall be circulated with the agenda of the
meeting at which they are to be adopted.

b. If Council is of the opinion that the minutes contain no errors or omissions, a
motion to adopt the minutes shall be passed.

c. If errors or omissions are noted in the minutes, a motion to amend shall be
introduced and the minutes shall be adopted as amended.

d. Minutes that have been adopted by Council shall be signed by the Presiding
Officer and the Senior Administrative Officer.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 9



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Declarations of Interest

36. a.

C.

When a Member has a direct or indirect pecuniary interest, as defined in the
Confiict of Interest Act, in any matter before Council and is present at a
meeting when this matter is the subject of consideration, that Member shall
disclose his or her interest in the matter and the general nature and extent
thereof and remove himself/herself from the meeting during consideration of
the matter.

When the interest of the Member has not been disclosed by reason of:

i. the Member being absent from the meeting in which the matter was the
subject of consideration; or

i. the Member acquired the interest after the meeting, the Member shall
disclose his or her interest in the matter at the next meeting of Council at
which the matter is considered.

All Members shall inform the Senior Administrative Officer, in writing of:

any taxes owed the Town which have not been paid by December 31 of the
year in which they were levied;

any debt, with the exception of property taxes, owed to the Town in excess
of $500 for more than 90 days; and

any controlling interest in a private or public corporation that is indebted to
the Town, with the exception of property taxes, for a sum exceeding $500
for more than 90 days.

Correspondence and Petitions

37. a.

b.

All correspondence addressed to the Mayor and/or Council shall be distributed
to all Members by the Mayor’s office.

Subject to subsection c), the full text of correspondence addressed the Mayor
and/or Council shall be included in the agenda package for a meeting of
Council when:

i. the correspondence is directly related to a matter being
considered by Council at Regular or Special meeting; or

i. aMember or the Senior Administrative Officer requests, prior to
10:00 a.m. on the Friday preceding a meeting, that the full text of
the correspondence be placed on the agenda for the next Regular
Meeting.

Any correspondence which reaches the Senior Administrative Officer for
inclusion on the agenda of a meeting of Council must:

i. belegible and coherent;

ii. be signed by at least one person who provides a printed name
and address;

ii.  be on paper or in digital format; and
iv.  not be libellous, impertinent or improper.

. Any petition submitted to the Mayor, any Member or the Senior Administrative

Officer shall be distributed to all Council Members and included on the agenda
for the next Regular Meeting of Council, or as soon thereafter as is reasonably
possible.

When an item of correspondence or a petition has been included on the

Council Procedures

Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 10



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

agenda of Council, Council may:

i.  refer it to Administration or a Standing Committee for a report or
recommendation;

ii.  consider motions on the correspondence or petition in accordance
with the Order of Business;

iii.  give other instructions on the correspondence or petition.

Statutory Public Hearings

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

All Statutory Public Hearings on a proposed by-law shall be both conducted during a
Regular or Special meeting of Council and held after First Reading and before Second
Reading.

Notice of all Statutory Public Hearings must be provided and shall state:
a. the purpose of the proposed by-law;

b. the place or places, two of which shall be the Town Office and the Town
website, where a copy of the proposed by-law may be inspected by the public
during regular office hours.

c. the place or places, one of which shall be the Town Office, where a copy of all
written submissions filed for consideration at a Statutory Public Hearing may be
inspected by the public during regular office hours;

d. the time and place at which the Council will hold the Statutory Public Hearing
on the proposed by-law;

e. the procedure to be followed by any persons who wish to make submissions
concerning the proposed by-law.

Council shall hold a Statutory Public Hearing at the time and place stated in the notice
referred to in Section 40 and shall hear every person who wishes to make a submission.

Notwithstanding Section 40, any person wishing to make a verbal submission at a
Statutory Public Hearing shall contact the Office of the Senior Administrative Officer
before 12:00 p.m. (noon) on the day of the hearing and provide his or her name and
whether or not he or she will be speaking in favour of or against the proposed by-law.
Any person wishing to make a verbal submission at a Statutory Public Hearing who has
not notified the Office of the Senior Administrative Officer as required in Section 42 may
speak after all those persons who have given notification have spoken.

Any person wishing to submit a written submission to Council for consideration at the
Statutory Public Hearing shall deliver it to the Office of the Senior Administrative Officer
no later than 4:30 p.m. on the Thursday preceding the Statutory Public Hearing.

All written submissions received before this deadline will be available for public viewing
at the Statutory Public Hearing and at the Town Office during normal office hours up to
and including the day of the hearing.

If a person is unable to attend a Statutory Public Hearing, that person may authorize
another person to speak on his or her behalf and this authorization must:

a. be in writing;

name the individual authorized to speak;

indicate the proposed by-law to be spoken to;

be signed by the person giving the authorization;

be received at the Office of the Senior Administrative Officer before 12:00 p.m.

© oo o

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 11



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

(noon) of the day of the Public Hearing.

46. The following procedure shall be followed at all Statutory Public Hearings:

a

47. a.

. the Presiding Officer shall introduce the proposed by-law;
b.

the Presiding Officer shall inform Council of the number and nature of the
written submissions received in the accordance with Section 44;

no person shall speak for more than ten (10) minutes unless an extension is
granted by Resolution of Council;

individuals opposed to the proposed by-law who have given notice of their
intention to speak pursuant to Section 42, shall be invited to speak first by the
Chair followed by those opposed to the proposed by-law who have not given
Notice pursuant to Section 43;

individuals in favour of the proposed by-law who have given notice of their
Intention to speak pursuant to Section 42 will then be invited to speak followed
by those in favour of the proposed by-law who have not given Notice pursuant
to Section 43;

after a person has spoken, any Member may ask that person questions,
provided such questions are relevant, directed through the Presiding Officer
and are asked in a courteous and respectful manner;

after all persons who wish to speak have been heard, Members may ask
relevant questions of the Senior Administrative Officer through the Presiding
Officer who may then refer the question to the appropriate Director or other
member of the Town Administration, or answer the question him or herself;

any person who has made a submission shall have an opportunity to respond
to any new information that has arisen during the Statutory Public Hearing for a
period not exceeding two (2) minutes unless an extension is granted by
Resolution of Council;

the Presiding Officer shall then close the Statutory Public Hearing.

Once the Presiding Officer has closed a Statutory Public Hearing with respect
to the proposed by-law, no additional submissions shall be considered by
Council, except at an additional Public Hearing called by Council in accordance
with this by-law

For greater certainty, and notwithstanding Sections 7 €) and g) of this By-law,
Council may by Resolution adjourn a Public Hearing to a subsequent Council
Meeting.

Following the closing of a Statutory Public Hearing wherein no submissions in
opposition to the proposed by-law, nor any submissions recommending an
amendment to the proposed by-law, are received Council may consider the
submission received (if any), debate the merits of the proposed by-law and
proceed with the Second Reading.

Following the closing of a Statutory Public Hearing wherein one or more
submissions in opposition to the proposed by-law are received, or any
submission recommending an amendment to the proposed by-law is received,
Council shall defer its consideration of the submissions received, any debate of
the merits of the proposed by-law, and Second Reading of it, to a subsequent
meeting. Council may, by Resolution, direct Administration to prepare a
summation of the points raised during the Statutory Public Hearing.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 12



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

e. Notwithstanding Section 47 d), Council may by Resolution:

i consider the submissions received, debate, if it deems advisable,
the merits of the proposed by-law and proceed with Second
Reading at the meeting in which the Statutory Public Hearing was
conducted;

ii. consider the submissions received and debate, if it deems
advisable, the merits of the proposed by-law at the meeting in
which the Statutory Public Hearing was conducted, and refer the
proposed by-law to Administration with direction to draft an
amendment to the proposed by-law; or

ii.  refer the proposed by-law back to Administration.

Delegations and Public Input Session

48. Any delegation wishing to appear before Council shall inform the Senior Administrative
Officer no later than 10:00 a.m. three working days preceding the meeting by completing
and submitting the Application for Delegation as established in Schedule “A” attached to
and forming part of the by-law.

49. Notwithstanding Section 48, any request to appear before Council shall be received by
the Senior Administrative Officer up to noon on the day of the meeting and the Senior
Administrative Officer shall provide the Presiding Officer, under separate cover, with
their names and the general nature of the presentation.

50. Council may, by Resolution, hear a delegation that has not met the notice requirements
set out in Section 48 and 49.

51. The following procedures apply to all delegations before Council:

a. all delegations shall address their remarks directly to the Presiding Officer and
shall not pose questions to individual Members or Administration;

each presenter shall be afforded ten (10) minutes to make their presentation;

the time allowed to each presenter may be extended by up to ten minutes by a
Special Resolution of Council;

d. after a person has spoken, any Member may, through the Presiding Officer,
ask that person or the Senior Administrative Officer relevant questions;

e. no debate shall be permitted on any delegation to Council either between
Members or with an individual making a delegation.

52. When making a presentation to Council or its standing or special committees, whether
as a delegation or during the Public Input session, no person shall:

a. speak disrespectfully of the Crown, any Member of Council, the public or an
employee of the Town;

b. use offensive language;

c. make personal remarks about any Member of Council, the public or an
employee of the Town;

d. reflect upon the motives of Council Members who may have voted for a
particular motion;

e. reflect upon the motives of advice given to Council by Administration;

f. refuse to comply with the decision of the Presiding Officer regarding any
interpretation of this by-law.

53. Once a delegation has been heard, Council may respond by:

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 13



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

a. referring the matter to Administration or the appropriate Standing Committee;
or

b. considering a motion on the subject matter of the presentation in accordance
with the Order of Business.

54. A fifteen (15) minute Public Input Period will be held at the commencement of a Regular
Meeting of Council. Residents wishing to speak must so indicate by placing their name
and address on a Speakers’ List prior to the Public Input Period.

55. During the Public Input Period, when recognized by the Presiding Officer, persons from
the gallery may address Council to comment on any matter coming within the jurisdiction
of the Council. Speakers must state their name and will be allowed two (2) minutes to
speak. Persons may not speak on a by-law from a closed statutory public hearing.

56. If at the end of the fifteen (15) minutes of Public Input Period, there remain speakers on
the list, Council may, by unanimous Resolution, agree to extend the length of the Public
Input Period.

57. From the close of the Nomination Period preceding the general municipal election or by-
election, the Public Input Period shall be suspended until the meeting of Council
following the election.

Administrative Enquiries

58. a. Any Member of Council may submit at a meeting an enquiry on any matter
relevant to the business of the Town.

b. The Senior Administrative Officer shall, wherever possible, provide information
to immediately respond to the enquiry.

c. The Senior Administrative Officer may refer the enquiry to the applicable
Director for immediate response.

d. Where the response to the enquiry requires verification of facts or a considered
opinion, the Senior Administrative Officer shall provide a written response to
the Mayor and Members as soon as is reasonably possible.

e. Where an enquiry is referred to a Standing Committee by Council, the enquiry
shall be received and considered by the Standing Committee at its next
Regular Meeting, or as soon thereafter as is reasonably possible.

f. If the Senior Administrative Officer reports that the financial or other resources
required to answer the enquiry are substantial and will affect the Town’s
budget, Council may direct the Senior Administrative Officer to abandon the
enquiry.

g. Notwithstanding Sections a) through f), Directors of the Town of Hay River may
present a short update for their department for this agenda item.

Committee Reports

59. a. All reports, and recommendations of Standing and Special Committees shall be
put in writing and no report shall be referred to the Committee of the Whole or
Council until copies of the report have been given to the Members unless
decided otherwise by Resolution.

b. Committee reports shall be attached to the Agenda for the meeting at which
they are to be introduced and shall be considered in the following order:

i. Standing Committee(s)
i. Special Committee(s)

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 14



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

c. The Presiding Officer shall request a Member of Council to introduce the report
to Council and move any motions arising from the report. Items on the report
which do not contain motions shall only be read at the request of a Member.

By-Laws
60. Council is empowered to make by-laws under the provisions of the Cities, Towns and
Villages Act.

61. A by-law must have three (3) distinct and separate readings to come into effect. Each
reading requires a separate Resolution of Council.

62. Council may not give a by-law more than two readings at the same meeting unless all
Members are present and, before Third Reading, a Resolution to present the by-law for
Third Reading at the same meeting is approved by unanimous consent.

63. Where a by-law requires the approval of the Minister, Hay River voters, or some other
authority, that approval must be obtained before the bylaw receives Third Reading.

64. All proposed by-laws must be assigned a unique by-law number and a concise title that
indicates the purpose of the by-law.

65. The First Reading of a by-law shall be decided without amendment or debate.
66. A by-law is effective on the date that it is:
a. Inwriting
Under the seal of the Municipal Corporation;
Signed by the Mayor or other Presiding Officer;
Signed under the Senior Administrative Officer
Or at a later date that the by-law may specify.

67. The Mayor or the Presiding Officer must sign, and the Senior Administrative Officer must
sign and seal the by-law as soon as reasonably possible after Third Reading is given.

68. Once a by-law has been given Third Reading, it may only be amended or repealed by
another by-law made in the same way as the original by-law, unless another method is
specifically authorized by statute.

®ao0o

Notices of Motion
69. a. Any Member who intends to bring any new matter before Council at a
subsequent Regular Meeting of Council shall give notice of such intent by:
i.  verbally stating to Council, the substance of the motion; and

ii. filing a written motion with the Senior Administrative Officer prior
to 10:00 a.m. two working days prior to the meeting.

b. Notices of Motion shall give sufficient detail so that the subject of the motion
and any proposed action can be determined, and it must state the date of the
meeting at which the motion will be introduced.

New Business

70. a. Any Member desiring to bring any new matter before Council which is not
included in the report of a Standing Committee or included elsewhere on the
Order of Business for the meeting may do so if:

i.  Notice of Motion has been given at a previous meeting pursuant to
Section 70; or

i. alegible copy of the proposed motion is provided to the Senior

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 15



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Administrative Officer no later than 10:00 a.m. two working days
preceding the meeting; or

iii.  Council passes a Special Resolution dispensing with the notice.

b. A motion to refer a new matter to committee for consideration is always in
order.

Adjournment

71. Council shall conclude its proceedings by adopting a motion to adjourn.

PART 5 — MOTIONS

Introduction of Motions

72. All motions must be concise, unambiguous and must either be provided in writing or
dictated to the Senior Administrative Officer.

73. Wherever possible, motions shall be composed;
a. Inthe positive to avoid the use of any double negative statement; and

b. In such a way that the motion results in a positive course of action upon
receiving an affirmative vote.

74. A motion shall be considered to be in the possession of Council when it has been stated,
moved and seconded.

75. No debate or vote on a motion shall be permitted until the motion is in the possession of
Council.

76. The mover of a motion shall have the right to speak first to a motion for a period of up to
five minutes. The right of the mover to introduce that motion takes precedence over all
other motions.

77. No motion shall be introduced that is substantially the same as one which the judgement
of Council has already been expressed during the same meeting.
Motion Out of Order

78. Wherever a motion is contrary to these rules of procedure, the Presiding Officer shall
rule the motion to be out of order.

Motion to Amend

79. A Member may move that a motion be amended in one of the following ways:
a. By “adding” certain words
b. By “striking out” words or paragraphs; or
c. By “striking out” certain words and inserting others.
80. A motion to amend shall be disposed of by Council prior to considering the main motion.

81. An amendment proposed to a motion must be relevant to its subject matter and must not
propose a direct negative of the motion.

82. Only one amendment shall be allowed to an amendment.

83. Where more than one motion to amend is introduced, Council shall consider the
amendments in the reverse order in which they were introduced.

84. Where a Member suggests a minor alternation to any amendable motion and the mover
and seconder of the motion consent to such a minor alteration, a friendly amendment
shall be deemed to have been made and accepted by Council.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 16



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

85. Where all amendments to a main motion have been voted on, Council shall vote on the
main motion prior to considering any other matter.

Reconsideration of Motion

86. a. After any motion has been voted on, any Member who voted with the majority
on that motion may, at the same or any later Regular Meeting, serve notice that
the member will move, at the next Regular Meeting held thereafter, for
reconsideration of the motion.

b. A motion to reconsider requires a Special Resolution.

c. A motion to reconsider allows for the amendment, withdrawal, or renewal of
any previous motion.

d. A motion to reconsider may not be applied to:
i. A vote which has caused an irrevocable action;
i. A motion to give Third Reading to a by-law; or
iii. A motion to reconsider.

Withdrawal of Motion

87. The mover of a motion may, with the consent of Council, withdraw his or her motion at
any time prior to the commencement of the taking of the vote on the motion.

Reading of a Matter
88. a. Any Member may, at any time, request that the motion under consideration be
read by the Mayor or the Senior Administrative Officer.
b. The request shall be made in such a manner as to not interrupt any Member
who has obtained the floor of Council.
Dividing Motion into Parts

89. Where a matter relating to a single subject contains several parts, each capable of
standing as a complete proposition, the matter may, at the request of any Member, be
divided and each part shall be considered and voted on separately.

Motion to Adjourn

90. A motion to adjourn is not debatable and cannot be amended.
91. A motion to adjourn does not require a seconder.
92. Before putting the motion for adjournment, the Presiding Officer must allow an
opportunity for any new notices of motion to be heard.
Personal Privilege

93. a. Where a Member desires to address a matter that concerns the right or
privilege of Council or the personal privilege of any individual Member, the
Member shall be entitled to raise such a matter.

b. A question of personal privilege shall take precedence over any motion or
matter and shall be immediately taken into consideration of Council.

c. The Member raising the question of personal privilege shall provide a concise
explanation to the Presiding Officer.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 17



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Point of Order

94. a. Any ruling of the Presiding Officer on Parliamentary Procedure as outlined in
this by-law or in Bourinot’s Rules of Order may be challenged.

b. Where a ruling of the Presiding Officer on any matter is challenged, the
Presiding Officer must state the question “Is the ruling of the Chair upheld?”
and the Mayor and the Member who challenged the ruling may debate the
question.

c. If the Presiding Officer refuses to put the question on a challenge, the person
who would preside if the individual occupying the chair were absent must put
the question to Council.

d. A motion to sustain the chair shall be decided by a simple majority.
Numbering of Motions

95. Resolutions of Council shall be uniquely numbered in ascending order each year,
commencing with number one for the first Resolution of the calendar year. The
incremental ordinal is preceded by the calendar year, and the numbering proceeds in
order through the last meeting of the calendar year (i.e. beginning with #20XX-01).

PART 6 — CONDUCT DURING DEBATE
Address through the Presiding Officer

96. a. Every Member intending to speak on any matter shall signify their intent to the
Presiding Officer and, upon being recognized, shall address only the Presiding
Officer.

b. Members shall address the Presiding Officer as “Mr. Mayor”, “Madam Mayor”,
“Your Worship”, “Mr. or Madam Acting Mayor”, or “Mr. or Madam Chair” as the
case may be and shall refer to each other as “the Mayor” or “Councillor ____”
as the case may be.

c. Any question addressed to a member of Administration shall be put through the
Presiding Officer to the Senior Administrative Officer who shall refer the matter
to the appropriate Director if necessary.

Order of Speakers

97. a. The Member who has moved a motion that is debatable shall be entitled to
speak first to the motion and have a final reply when all Members wishing to
speak have spoken.

b. When two or more Members signify their intent to speak, the Presiding Officer
shall recognize the Member who, in the opinion of the Presiding Officer, first
requested the floor of Council and next recognize the remaining Members
wishing to speak in the same order.

Limits on Debate

98. No Member may speak more than twice to a motion and no speech longer than five
minutes shall be permitted except with the consent of Council by Resolution.
a. No Member shall speak a second time to the same motion as long as any

Member who desires to speak has not yet spoken.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 18



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Opportunity to be Heard

99. Each Member will be given the opportunity to speak to a motion before it is put to a vote,
unless a motion to limit or end debate is passed.

Interruptions
100.

=000 T

g.

Any Member who has the floor of Council may only be interrupted by another
Member:

a.

when the Member is discussing a matter and no motion is on the floor;
when a Member has exceeded the time limit to speak;

by a call for the Orders of the Day;

by a question of privilege;

by a point of order;

by an objection to the consideration of a matter;

by a Challenge of the ruling of the Presiding Officer.

Prohibited Acts

101.

xT T Ta@

No Member shall:

speak disrespectfully of the Crown, other Members, the public or any employee
of the Town;

use offensive language in Council Chamber, or in reference to any Member,
the public or any employee of the Town;

speak on any matter except the subject being considered by Council;
make personal remarks about other Members;

reflect upon the motives of Members who may have voted for a particular
motion;

debate the merits of a past vote of Council, unless to move to reconsider a
motion;

walk out of the room while the Chair is putting the question;

hold discourse which may interrupt a Member who has the floor of Council;
pass between a Member who has the floor of Council and the Presiding Officer;
speak to a question after the question is finally put by the Presiding Officer;
wilfully contravene the provisions of this by-law;

refuse to comply with the decision of the Presiding Officer on any point of
order, question of personal privilege or any other interpretation of the provision
of this by-law.

Disciplinary Procedures

102. a.
b.

The Presiding Officer may call to order any Member who is out of order.

Subject to subsection c), where a Member persists in refusing to comply with
the ruling of the Presiding Officer or a decision of Council on any point of order,
question of personal privilege or other interpretation of the provisions of this by-
law, the Presiding Officer may consider such action to be improper conduct and
order a Member to leave the Council Chamber, and Council must vote
immediately on a motion to expel that Member from the meeting without
debate.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 19



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Where a Member presents an apology that is acceptable to the other Members,
the Presiding Officer shall permit the Member to remain in his or her seat.

The Presiding Officer shall have the authority to determine whether the use of
any word, phrase, term or expression was offensive.

Disturbance by Public

103. a.

b.

The Presiding Officer may order any member of the public who disturbs the
proceedings of Council by words or action to be expelled.

The Presiding Officer may call upon a Peace Officer to remove any member of
the public who refuses to leave a meeting voluntarily after having been
expelled.

Participation of Presiding Officer in Debate

104. a.

The Presiding Officer may state relevant facts on any matter before the Council
without leaving the chair but shall not fully participate in a debate or move or
second any motion without first leaving the chair.

If the Mayor wishes to leave the chair for any reason, he or she must call on
the Deputy Mayor, or in their absence, any other Member to assume the chair.

When the Presiding Officer vacates the chair pursuant to subsection a) or b), it
shall not be resumed until after the vote has been taken on the motion.

Committee of the Whole

105. a.

o

Where Council, in consideration of any matter, requires additional information
through questions to staff or wishes to allow for a less formal discussion of a
matter, Council may, by Resolution, move into Committee of the Whole.

The Presiding Officer of Council shall chair the Committee of the Whole.

A quorum of Committee of the Whole is a majority of Members.

Council may choose to rename the Committee of the Whole, and that
Committee shall still be considered a Committee of the Whole for the purposes
of its functions.

106.  The rules of procedure for Council shall be observed in Committee of the Whole
with the following exceptions:

a.

b.

Members may speak more than twice to a matter provided that all Members
who wish to speak to a matter have been permitted to speak.

The proceedings of Committee of the Whole will be not recorded except the
report to Council.

The only motions permitted are to adopt reports of recommendations, to amend
reports or recommendations, to rise without reporting, to rise and report or to
revert to or from a Private session in accordance with Section 20.

If a motion to Rise and Report is passed, any matter which has not been
decided shall be considered lost and the Presiding Officer shall report the
business of the Committee of the Whole when Council is reconvened.

Any Member may move to adopt the recommendations of the Committee of the
Whole and debate will only be allowed on any amendments proposed by the
Committee of the Whole.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 20



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

PART 7 - VOTING

Voting Procedure

107.  Votes on all motions shall be taken as follows:
a. Members shall be in their designated seat when the motion is put;
b. the Presiding Officer shall put the motion;
c. Members shall vote by a show of hands;
d. the Presiding Officer shall declare the result of the vote and, in the case of a
recorded vote, how each Member voted.
Duty of Member to Vote

108. a. All Council Members present, except for the Presiding Officer, shall vote when
the question is put by the Presiding Officer unless that Member is prohibited
from voting for reasons of declared Pecuniary interest under Section 36 of this
by-law.

b. The Presiding Officer shall not vote on any motion except to cast the deciding vote for or
against the motion in the case of a tie or when a Special Resolution is required.

Secret Ballot Prohibited

109. Except in the case of Section 6. c) (i) Appointment of Deputy Mayor, no vote shall
be taken in Council by ballot or by any other method of secret voting, and every
vote so taken is of no effect.

Recorded Vote

110.  Any member may call for a recorded vote in accordance with the Cities, Towns and
Villages Act.

Errors in Good Faith

111.  Where a Member, immediately after casting his or her vote, states to the Presiding
Officer that he or she has made an error in good faith, the matter may be
resubmitted for a vote with the consent of Council.

PART 8 — STANDING COMMITTEES

Establishment of Standing Committees

112.  Council may establish one or more Standing Committees from time to time to
conduct business for the Town. Standing Committees shall be established by by-
law.

Terms of Reference

113.  The terms of reference for the Standing Committees of Council shall be as
prescribed in a separate bylaw for each Standing Committee.

Quorum

114. A quorum for all Standing Committees of Council shall be a majority of the Members
who comprise the committee.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 21



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Duties

115. a.

All Standing Committees of Council are advisory in nature.

Standing Committees have the responsibility to analyse all matters referred to
them by Council or the Senior Administrative Officer and submit
recommendations to Council on ways and means of addressing these matters.

116.  Meetings of Standing Committees shall be conducted in accordance with the
following provisions:

a.

b.

the Mayor shall be the Chairperson of all Standing Committees of Council
unless otherwise decided by Council;

in the absence of the Chairperson, the Deputy Mayor shall discharge the duties
of the Chairperson,;

the Chairperson shall not vote on any motion except to cast the deciding vote
for or against the motion in the case of a tie;

informal discussion of any matter is permitted when no motion has been made;

members of the public shall be permitted to participate in the formal discussion
of any matter before a Standing Committee;

every member of a Standing Committee shall have one vote for each item
presented at a meeting provided that member is in attendance.

a motion shall not require a seconder with the exception of a motion to move
into or out of a Private Meeting;

a member shall be entitled to speak more than once on any matter provided
the total speaking time does not exceed ten minutes;

when any motion is approved by a Standing Committee, the motion shall be
included in the report to Council in the form of a recommendation to Council;

should any member disagree with the recommendation of a Standing
Committee, that Member’s dissent will be noted in the report to Council if
requested by the member;

the length of any Standing Committee meeting shall not exceed one and a half
(1 72) hours. If the order of business has not been completed at the conclusion
of the one and a half (1 /%) hours, the meeting shall be recessed and
reconvened at a date and time set by the majority of the committee members
present.

117.  The rules of procedure for Council shall apply to all Standing Committees in so far
as they are appropriate.

Special Meetings

118. a.

b.

A Special Meeting of any Standing Committee shall be called whenever it is
deemed necessary by the Chairperson or any two members of that committee.

Where a Special Meeting of any Standing Committee has been called pursuant
to subsection a), the Senior Administrative Officer shall post a public notice as
required by the Cities, Towns and Villages Act and give at least twenty-four
(24) hours’ notice to:

i.  all members of the Standing Committee and of Council.
ii. all Directors; and
iii.  the media who normally attend the meetings of Council.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 22



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

c. The notice referred to in subsection b) shall indicate the time, date, location
and purpose for the Special Meeting of the Standing Committee.

d. No other business shall be conducted at a Special Meeting of a Standing
Committee except that which is included in the notice referred to in subsection
b).

Subcommittees

119. a. Any Standing Committee of Council may, from time to time, appoint a sub-
committee of its members to investigate and report back on any item of
business which is within the area of responsibility of the Standing Committee.

b. The appointment of any person to a subcommittee who is not a member of the
Standing Committee must be approved by Council.

c. Where a subcommittee is established in accordance with the provisions of this
by-law, the subcommittee shall meet as soon as possible to establish the date
and time of its meetings.

d. Unless otherwise decided by Council, a subcommittee shall select any one or
more of its members to preside and discharge the duties of the Chairperson.

e. Every subcommittee to which a matter has been referred shall report in writing
to its Standing Commiittee.

f.  Any report of a subcommittee shall be subject to review by the appropriate
Standing Committee and shall be included in that Standing Committee’s report
to Council. A subcommittee shall be considered discharged on the
consideration of its final report by the Standing Committee.

PART 9 — SPECIAL COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

Special Committees of Council

120.  Where Council deems it necessary to establish a Special Committee to investigate
and consider any matter, Council shall:

a. name the committee;

establish a term of reference;

appoint members to it;

establish the term of appointments of members;

establish requirements for reporting to Council or a Standing Committee;
allocate any necessary budget and/or other resources to it.

-0 Qa0 CT

PART 10 — REPEAL AND EFFECT
Repeal

121. By-law No. 2285/GEN/12 and any amendments are hereby repealed.
Effect

122. This by-law shall come into effect upon receiving Third and Final Reading and
otherwise meeting the requirements of the Cities, Towns and Villages Act.

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 23



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

PART 11 — SEVERABILITY

123. Each provision of this by-law is independent of all other provisions. If a Court of
competent jurisdiction declares any provision invalid for any reason, all other
provisions of this by-law shall remain valid and enforceable, and the by-law shall be
interpreted as such.

READ A FIRST TIME this day of , 2020

Mayor
READ A SECOND TIME this day of , 2020.

Mayor
READ A THIRD AND FINAL TIME this day of , 2020.

Mayor

CERTIFIED that this bylaw has been made in accordance with the requirements of the Cities,
Towns and Villages Act, S.N.W.T., 2003, c.22, in force April 1, 2004 as amended from time to
time, and the bylaws of the Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River this day of :
2020.

Senior Administrative Officer

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT Page 24



BY-LAW NO. 2420
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

SCHEDULE A

ORDER OF BUSINESS

i

ii.
iii.
iv.
V.
Vi.
Vii.
viii.

Xi.
Xii.
Xiii.
Xiv.
XV.
XVi.
XVii.
XViii.
XiX.
XX.

Public Input

Call to Order

Adoption of the Agenda

Declaration of Interest

Announcements, Awards, Ceremonies and Presentations
Adoption of Minutes from Previous Meeting(s)
Business Arising from the Minutes
Correspondence and Petitions

Delegations

Mayor’s Report

Administrative Enquiries

Committee Reports

Bylaws

Policies

Deferred or Tabled Business

Notices of Motion

New Business

Other Business

Private Meeting

Adjournment

Council Procedures Bylaw, Corporation of the Town of Hay River, NWT

Page 25



	0609 Regular Meeting of Council - agenda
	0526 Regular Meeting of Council Minutes
	0602 Special Meeting of Council Minutes
	Public Works - April - June 2020
	Public Works Daily Operations:
	Landfill Operations:
	Water Licence Activities:
	Capital Projects 2020:
	Capital Projects 2019:
	Planning:

	April 2020 Tourism and Economic Development Report
	May 2020 Tourism and Economic Development Report
	0602 Mayors Report - May 2020
	0309 Letter of Support - Katlo Tech
	2020-2021 CPI Contribution Agreement report to council
	Report to Council - IT Infrastructure and Service Rationalization v2
	05 2020 Municipal Enforcement Report
	Report to Council - Council Procedures Bylaw v2
	Porritt Landing Bylaw 2386 - 2020 tracked changes
	CITATION
	DEFINITIONS
	DAY USE MOORING
	PARKING
	WAIVER OF LIABILITY
	30. The Town shall not be liable for damage to vehicles, Trailers, Watercraft or people using Porritt Landing.
	GENERAL
	31. All persons using the Porritt Landing shall do so at their own risk.
	32. The Town shall not be responsible for any damage or injury sustained to any Watercraft, vehicle or person in the area known as Porritt Landing.
	33. All dogs shall be kept on a leash while at the Porritt Landing unless they are contained in a vehicle or Watercraft.
	35. A Watercraft Owner shall ensure the safe mooring of their Watercraft.
	36. A Watercraft Owner shall furnish and maintain their own lines and chaffing gear. Chaffing gear shall be attached to the Watercraft or tied to the floats; no other type of fastening is permitted.
	37. No person shall moor a Watercraft other than in an area identified for mooring.
	38. No person shall moor a Watercraft in a manner that interferes unreasonably with the mooring or access of another Watercraft
	39. No person shall fuel a Watercraft while it is moored.
	40. No person shall place or store flammable liquids, oily rags, or other debris, on floats or municipal property, and any costs associated with the cleanup will be charged to the Watercraft owner responsible.
	41. No person shall store supplies, materials, accessories, articles, or debris anywhere on Porritt Landing other than a refuse container.
	42. No person shall construct any lockers, chests, cabinets or other structures, or otherwise modify docks in any way.
	43. No person shall conduct on-site repairs or maintenance of a Watercraft without the prior written consent of the Senior Administrative Officer.
	44. Walkways and fingers must be kept free of tenders, dinghies, materials, debris, carpeting and equipment at all times.
	45. Children under the age of 12 must be under the supervision of a person 12 years or age or older at all times.
	46. No person shall dispose of fish or fish parts in any waste container other than one identified for that purpose.
	ENFORCEMENT
	52. The Town may remove any vehicles, Watercraft Trailers or Watercraft that are parked or moored in violation of this bylaw at the Owner’s expense and risk and the cost thereof shall be a debt due from the Owner to the Town.
	PENALTIES
	54. The Town reserves the right to cancel the Season Pass of any Season Pass holder who is in violation of this bylaw.
	REPEAL
	READINGS AND ADOPTION

	Council Procedures Bylaw 2020 DRAFT
	PART 1 – GENERAL
	Short Title
	Definitions
	Appointment of Acting Mayor
	Suspension or Modification
	Reference Source

	PART 2 – MEETINGS – GENERAL CONDUCT
	First Meeting
	Regular Meetings
	Special Meetings
	Emergency Meetings
	Quorum
	Attendance
	Vacancies on Council
	Commencement of Proceedings
	Duties of the Presiding Officer
	Duties of a Member of Council
	Duties of the Senior Administrative Officer
	Duties of Directors
	Meetings Open to the Public

	PART 3 – AGENDAS AND MINUTES
	Agenda Format
	Deadline for Submission of Agenda Items
	Agenda Distribution
	Minutes of Council
	Recordings of Meetings

	PART 4 – ORDER OF BUSINESS
	Order of Business
	Adoption of Minutes from Previous Meeting(s)
	Declarations of Interest
	Correspondence and Petitions
	Statutory Public Hearings
	Delegations and Public Input Session
	Administrative Enquiries
	Committee Reports
	By-Laws
	Notices of Motion
	New Business
	Adjournment

	PART 5 – MOTIONS
	Introduction of Motions
	Motion Out of Order
	Motion to Amend
	Reconsideration of Motion
	Withdrawal of Motion
	Reading of a Matter
	Dividing Motion into Parts
	Motion to Adjourn
	Personal Privilege
	Point of Order
	Numbering of Motions

	PART 6 – CONDUCT DURING DEBATE
	Address through the Presiding Officer
	Order of Speakers
	Limits on Debate
	Opportunity to be Heard
	Interruptions
	Prohibited Acts
	Disciplinary Procedures
	Disturbance by Public
	Participation of Presiding Officer in Debate
	Committee of the Whole

	PART 7 – VOTING
	Voting Procedure
	Duty of Member to Vote
	Secret Ballot Prohibited
	Recorded Vote
	Errors in Good Faith

	PART 8 – STANDING COMMITTEES
	Establishment of Standing Committees
	Terms of Reference
	Quorum
	Duties
	Special Meetings
	Subcommittees

	PART 9 – SPECIAL COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
	Special Committees of Council

	PART 10 – REPEAL AND EFFECT
	Repeal
	Effect

	PART 11 – SEVERABILITY

	Council Procedures Bylaw 2020 DRAFT.pdf
	PART 1 – GENERAL
	Short Title
	Definitions
	Appointment of Acting Mayor
	Suspension or Modification
	Reference Source

	PART 2 – MEETINGS – GENERAL CONDUCT
	First Meeting
	Regular Meetings
	Special Meetings
	Emergency Meetings
	Quorum
	Attendance
	Vacancies on Council
	Commencement of Proceedings
	Duties of the Presiding Officer
	Duties of a Member of Council
	Duties of the Senior Administrative Officer
	Duties of Directors
	Meetings Open to the Public

	PART 3 – AGENDAS AND MINUTES
	Agenda Format
	Deadline for Submission of Agenda Items
	Agenda Distribution
	Minutes of Council
	Recordings of Meetings

	PART 4 – ORDER OF BUSINESS
	Order of Business
	Adoption of Minutes from Previous Meeting(s)
	Declarations of Interest
	Correspondence and Petitions
	Statutory Public Hearings
	Delegations and Public Input Session
	Administrative Enquiries
	Committee Reports
	By-Laws
	Notices of Motion
	New Business
	Adjournment

	PART 5 – MOTIONS
	Introduction of Motions
	Motion Out of Order
	Motion to Amend
	Reconsideration of Motion
	Withdrawal of Motion
	Reading of a Matter
	Dividing Motion into Parts
	Motion to Adjourn
	Personal Privilege
	Point of Order
	Numbering of Motions

	PART 6 – CONDUCT DURING DEBATE
	Address through the Presiding Officer
	Order of Speakers
	Limits on Debate
	Opportunity to be Heard
	Interruptions
	Prohibited Acts
	Disciplinary Procedures
	Disturbance by Public
	Participation of Presiding Officer in Debate
	Committee of the Whole

	PART 7 – VOTING
	Voting Procedure
	Duty of Member to Vote
	Secret Ballot Prohibited
	Recorded Vote
	Errors in Good Faith

	PART 8 – STANDING COMMITTEES
	Establishment of Standing Committees
	Terms of Reference
	Quorum
	Duties
	Special Meetings
	Subcommittees

	PART 9 – SPECIAL COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
	Special Committees of Council

	PART 10 – REPEAL AND EFFECT
	Repeal
	Effect

	PART 11 – SEVERABILITY




